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NORTHERN CAPE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRADE AND INVESTMENT PROMOTION 

AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 

 

To the Member of the Executive Council, Mr. J.F. Block, MPL  

We hereby submit our Annual Report for the period April 2012 to March 2013 to comply with the 

relevant requirement in the PFMA, Act 1 of 1999. 

 

 

 

______________________ 

Mr. T.U. Dikeni  

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
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FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 

The search for the best organisational arrangements to promote provincial economic 

development has been a significant task for NCEDA and its shareholder, the Northern Cape 

Provincial Administration. As a result NCEDA was converted from an IDC supported 

development agency to a fully fledged Schedule 3C public entity two years ago. 
 

However, much work still need
 
to be done to extract full value from this arrangement and for 

this reason it is imperative that DEDAT and NCEDA work much closer in planning and 

implementing initiatives for economic development and trade and investment promotion in 

the province.

 
This includes designing a beneficial solution to deal with the duplication of 

functions between DEDAT and NCEDA.

 
NCEDA has had to weather a number of storms since its birth to ensure improvements on 

good governance. At the same time during the period under review

 

it was faced with multiple 

challenges namely a Board that had two vacancies, budget not sufficient for making the 

impact the Agency was designed for, staff skills deficits, fragile systems and gaps in policies 

and procedures, an inexperienced management team, frequent changes in CEOs, as well as 

moving of offices. All of this in one way or another culminated in a considerable leadership 

challenge for the Agency and its eventual disclaimer during the audit done by the Auditor-

General. The latter was a huge disappointment

 

but a number of valuable lessons were learnt 

from it at the same time, lessons that will become building blocks as we work diligently to put 

NCEDA back on a path where it will be respected for its good corporate governance.

 
NCEDA not only needs to be comprehensively restructured and refocussed, but needs to be 

capacitated with adequate financial resources and expertise at both Board and staff level to 

play an impactful role in the various

 

provincial

 

strategic infrastructure projects, special 

economic zones and other high impact opportunities in renewable energy, tourism, 

agriculture, mining and mineral beneficiation and manufacturing. At the same time the 

Agency needs to be fully integrated and aligned to the National Development Plan, provincial 

Growth and Development Strategy and the DEDAT strategic plan for it to render the best 

possible return on investment. 

 

Improved planning, staff  skills development and developing new partnerships within 

government and the private sector will play a significant role in the Agency's future success 

and its long-term sustainability.

 

The future of NCEDA will be cemented in being an 

exemplary implementing agent for our shareholder. For this purpose we have to improve our 

capacity to deliver on projects with a

 

varied and complicated nature.

 

I would like to take this opportunity to recognise Mr. John Block, MEC for Finance, Economic 

Development and Tourism,

 

for his vision and leadership where it relates to growing the 

provincial economy and Mr. Patrick Seboko

 

who is the HOD for our mother department

 

for 

his advice during the financial year.  I also would like to thank my fellow Board members, the 

NCEDA management at head office and at Witsand, as well as all of the staff members in 

our employment for their work effort and commitment to the Agency.

 

______________________

Mr. T.U. Dikeni  
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW 

NCEDA has experienced a very challenging year under review, a year in which it had to struggle to 

carve out an accepted role and function for itself as it grappled with adopting a single-minded focus for 

economic development and the promotion of trade and industry as a public entity. Furthermore the 

Agency had adjust to no less than three acting CEOs, manage challenges to deliver on its annual 

performance plans with a generally inexperienced management team and severe leadership challenges 

that caused undesirable corporate governance drift and a disclaimer in the audit done by the Auditor-

General. 

A virtually all-new management team was appointed in January 2013 to enhance the leadership 

capacity and ability to achieve in the Agency. This culminated in positive advances made towards the 

end of the period under review. These advances were made in policy development, risk management, 

profiling the province as trade and investment destination and implementing a newly designed 

corporate identity. Five project business plans were submitted to potential project funders as we seek to 

accelerate economic development in the province.  

Witsand provincial nature reserve turned in a slightly below average performance in accommodation 

occupancy rates. This can be ascribed to construction works on the reserve which adversely affected 

the peace and tranquillity of the destination. It did maintain its position as a self-funding operation within 

NCEDA. 

The MSICC was launched with acclaim while a service provider was appointed to operate the facility as 

a commercial concern. However, the MSICC is still faced with vast organizational and maintenance 

challenges which need to be solved as an urgent matter. 

NCEDA closed the year under review with Board vacancies not filled yet resulting in the Agency being 

in breach of its own Act, rendering the Board de facto in a dysfunctional state as related to the report 

submitted by the Auditor-General.  

As related to above, NCEDA received a disclaimer in its audit based on the following reasons: 

 Adjustments required to the financial statements as it relates to the MSICC. 

 Disclosures as it relates to trade and other payables from exchange transactions. 

 Property, plant and equipment management related matters. 

 Lack of adequate systems to accurately record and account for expenditure. 

 Lack of evidence to determine whether further adjustments needed to be made to the annual 

financial statements where it related to revenue from non-exchange transactions. 

 Irregular expenditure. 

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

 Lack of systems to ensure commitments were identified and reported in annual financial statements. 

 Matters related to the statement of cash flows. 

 Risk of fraud and error. 

In addition, the Auditor-General made findings related to NCEDA not following its approved annual 

performance plan, compliance with laws and regulations, matters related to budget, annual financial 

statements, performance and annual reports, audit committee not being in place, internal audit function 
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not being established, deviations from procurement regulations and contract management, matters 

related to expenditure and revenue management, as well as possible financial misconduct. 

Furthermore, the Auditor-General made findings related to lack of internal control and leadership, 

governance and financial and performance management. 

During March 2013 NCEDA and DEDAT agreed to work together and tackle the challenges as 

experienced by NCEDA. This, together with the considerable value added by the Office of the Auditor-

General during the audit period, will prove to be precious building blocks to improve corporate 

governance and performance outcomes at NCEDA. The situation at NCEDA is indeed dire at present 

but from this the Board and staff will take the golden lessons learnt and work for a better NCEDA and a 

more prosperous Northern Cape in the years to come.  

I would like to take this opportunity, having taken up the position of Acting CEO only on 1 March 2013, 

to heartily thank Mr. Tobela Dikeni for his frank and strong leadership. I also would like to thank the 

other Board members for enriching discussions and guidance as well as the NCEDA team for their 

support in this short period.  

In conclusion, NCEDA has been hard-hit by the adverse finding and its reputation will suffer in the 

process. It is going to be a long and hard road back to sound corporate governance and good 

performance but the fact remains that it all is possible. There is hope! 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Mr. J.L. van Schalkwyk 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. NCEDA’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1 REGISTERED NAME OF PUBLIC ENTITY 

The Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotion Agency.  

As such it is a public entity incorporated in terms of the Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade 

and Investment Promotion Agency Act, Act 4  of 2008. 

1.2 REGISTERED OFFICE AND POSTAL ADDRESS 

2nd Floor 

Templar Court Building  

Bean Street 

Kimberley 

8301 

1.3 CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBERS  

Telephone : 053-833-1503 

Facsimile : 053-833-1390 

www.nceda.co.za 

1.4 EXTERNAL AUDITORS INFORMATION  

Enslins Kimberley Chartered Accountants 

Audit Team Leader: 

Gerhard Saaiman CA(SA) 

Mobile   : 076 905 7420 

E-Mail  : gerhards@enslinskby.co.za 

Physical Address: 

Salgos Centre 

59-71 George Street 

Kimberley 

8301 
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Postal Address: 

PO Box 1690 

Kimberley 

8300 

Contact Information: 

Telephone :  053 831 1080 

Facsimile :  053 831 1098 

E-mail  :  info@enslinskby.co 

1.5 BANKERS INFORMATION 

First National Bank 

New Park Branch - 231002 

Physical Address:  

Corner of Long & Bultfontein Street 

Kimberley 

8301 

Postal Address: 

Private Bag X6054 

Kimberley 

8300  

Contact Information: 

Telephone  :  053-832-1644  

Facsimile  :  053-832-4142 

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS 

CEO  Chief Executive Officer 

CFO  Chief Financial Officer 

DEDAT  Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

DENC  Department of Environment and Nature Conservation 
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DRPW  Department of Roads and Public Works 

HOD  Head of Department 

ED  Economic Development 

IDC  Industrial Development Corporation. 

MEC  Member of the Executive Council 

MPL  Member of the Executive Council 

MSICC  Mittah Seperepere International Convention Centre 

NCEDA  Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Agency 

PFMA  Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999. 

TIP  Trade and Investment Promotion. 

WPNR  Witsand Provincial Nature Reserve 

3. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

3.1 VISION 

Promoting the Northern Cape as a sustainable business and investment friendly province. 

3.2 MISSION 

To be true to ourselves and to our purpose, our mission is to achieve the promotion of the Northern 

Cape as a business friendly province through: 

 Seeking sustainable growth at all times. 

 Facilitating the creation of a conducive environment for trade and investment within the 

Province. 

 Increased focus on attracting investment. 

 The promotion of trade. 

 In pursuit of economic development. 

 And this constantly in striving for sustainable and quality job creation at all times. 

3.3 VALUES 

NCEDA is anchored in the following fundamental values: 

Transparency: We will communicate realness in our dealings with colleagues and clients at all times. 

Openness: We shall at all times be open to new ideas, thus reflecting the character of our clients at all 

times. 

Honesty: We will always be sincere and be truthful to ourselves and our clients. 
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Integrity: Our organisation will be viewed by those, both within and without, as honest and upstanding. 

Professionalism: We will continuously build on previous performance by active, positive and 

constructive criticism of past actions and as such strive for professional action at all times. 

Leadership: We will be exemplary at all times and strive to be good ambassadors of the organisation. 

Accountability: We will be accountable for all our actions, good or bad and deal with the 

consequences thereof. 

Motivation: We shall at all times approach our work with enthusiasm and at the same time give every 

assignment our best effort. 

Resourcefulness: We shall use all our resources to demonstrate our capabilities and service 

excellence in order to stay relevant in our market place. 

Efficiency: We will at all times strive to achieve our goals with limited resources in good quality.  

Communication: We will ensure that all our clients and stakeholders are always informed about what 

we are doing. 

Relevance: We will always seek to create an environment where others may learn, grow and be 

fulfilled and reach their full potential. 

3.4 STRATEGIC DIRECTION 

The NCEDA strategic direction is as follows: 

3.4.1 Economic Development 

The key sectors for support and intervention is tourism and agriculture. As such a number of approved 

projects will be supported in the form of contributing to pre-feasibility studies, environmental impact 

assessments, business plan development and facilitation of funding applications. 

3.4.2 Trade and Investment Promotion 

The key focus areas are exporter development and providing an information service to traders and 

investors with specific reference to the available incentives and market access opportunities. 

4. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES  

NCEDA is a Schedule 3C public entity in terms of the PFMA, Act 1 of 1999. 

The legislated mandate of NCEDA is captured in Section 3(1)(a) of the Northern Cape Economic 

Development, Trade and Investment promotion Agency, Act 4 of 2008:  

 Plan and assist with business enterprise and rural development. 

 Provide funding in respect of approved enterprise development. 

 Engage in project management. 

 Engage in the development and management of immovable property.  
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 Promote foreign trade and investment. 

NCEDA is also permitted in Section 3(2) of the Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and 

Investment promotion Agency, Act 4 of 2008 to progressively increase its own revenue generation and 

collections. 

NCEDA has been entrusted with a further two mandates and they are the management of tourism 

operations in the Witsand Provincial Nature Reserve (WPNR) and the Mittah Seperepere International 

Convention Centre (MSICC). 

The legislative mandates guiding and affecting NCEDA are: 

 Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). 

 Treasury Regulations. 

 Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices. 

 International Standards on Auditing. 

 Labour relations Act (Act 66 of 1995). 

 Constitution of South Africa (Act 108 of 1996). 

 Borrowing Powers of Provincial Government Act (Act 48 of 1996). 

 Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act 75 of 1997). 

 Employment Equity Act (Act 55 of 1998). 

 Skills Development Act (Act 97 of 1998). 

 Occupational Health and Safety Act (Act 85 of 1993). 

 Unemployment Insurance Fund Act (Act 63 of 2011). 

 Tourism Act (Act No 72 of 1993) . 

 Public Service Act (Act 103 of 1994). 

 National Small Enterprise Act (Act No. 102 of 1996). 

 Northern Cape Tourism Act (Act 5 of 1998). 

 State Information Technology Agency (SITA) Act ( Act 88 of 1998);  

 Competition Act (CA) 1998 (Act 89 of 1998); 

 National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) 1998 (Act 107 of 1998); 

 Construction Industry Development Board Act (Act 38 of 2000); 

 Public Audit Act (Act 25 of 2004).  

 Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act (PCCAA) 2004 (Act 12 of 2004);  

 Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, (Act 2012 of 2004). 

 Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 (Act 13 of 2005). 

 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA) 2000 (Act 5 of 2000)  
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5. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

5.1 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE: NCEDA 

 

The NCEDA organogram as presented above is approved by the MEC for Finance, Economic 

Development and Tourism.  However, it does not reflect the various posts as occupied by staff at the 

Witsand provincial nature reserve. The NCEDA organogram will be reviewed during the 2013/14 

financial year as part of the Agency’s restructuring process which commenced in March 2013. 

5.2 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE: WITSAND 

Witsand does not have an approved organogram and is therefore part of a review of the entire NCEDA 

restructuring process which commenced in March 2013. 
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

6.  STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY  

The Chief Executive Officer of a Public Entity is responsible for the preparation of the performance 

information and for the judgements made in this information. 

The Chief Executive Officer is further responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 

control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance 

information. 

Performance information provided was based on available documents. It should be noted that NCEDA 

had three Acting Chief Executive Officers and even experienced a period without a Chief Executive 

Officer during the period under review. It should further be noted that for a number of reasons NCEDA 

experienced challenges with implementing its Annual Performance Plans, reporting, archiving of 

documents and document management and this may impact on the accuracy of the performance 

information provided. 

In my opinion, the performance information provided here reflects a best effort under circumstances to 

produce an accurate reflection of the NCEDA achievements.
 

 

__________________________
 

Mr. J.L. van Schalkwyk
 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 

 
7. 

 
AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT

 

The Auditor General did not express an opinion on the performance information for usefulness and 

reliability, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control. 
 

8. 
 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
 
FOR NCEDA

 
8.1

 
GENERAL NOTE

 
Reporting on performance information is hampered by the fact that NCEDA did not work according to 

the approved Annual Performance Plan as was also reported by the Auditor -General. The situation was 

made worse by the fact tha the Annual Parformace plan for the peirod under review did not have 

properly formulated strategic goals, performance indicators and targets while in a number of cases work 

done by the NCEDA staff was not accommodated in the plan. The information reflected under Part B in 

the Annual report for 2012/13 is therefore the best possible reflection of what was achieved during the 

year under review.
 

8.2
 

THE EXECUTIVE
 

Mr. R. Warie, Acting Chief Executive Officer of NCEDA, returned to DEDAT on 1 August 2012. He was 

succeeded by Ms. T. Mangojane who occupied the post until 28

 

February 2013

 

when

 

she resigned 
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from the acting delegation. Following a brief period where NCEDA was without a Chief Executive 

Officer DEDAT seconded Mr. J. van Schalkwyk who too k up the position on 1 March  2013.  

8.3. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Risk Management Business Unit achieved the following:  

Performance 

Indicator 

Target  Actual Performance  

April 2012 –  March 2013  

Develop / 

review risk 

management 

strategy 

Draft risk management strategy 

developed for 2013/14.  

Draft risk management strategy for 

2012/13 developed and distributed to 

NCEDA management for comment and 

input.  

Risk management policy for 2013/14 

reviewed.  

Reviewed Risk Management Policy for 

2013/2014 financial year.  

Facilitate the establishment of a Risk 

Committee.  

Develop advert for  Risk & Audit Members 

and facilitated the placement of the advert.  

Develop risk 

implementatio

n plan. 

Risk implementation plan developed 

for 2013/14.  

Developed Risk Implementation Plan for 

2013/2014.  

Develop / 

review risk 

register 

Draft consolidated risk register 

developed for 2012/13.  

Draft consolidated risk register for 2012/13 

developed and distributed to NCEDA 

management for comment and input.  The 

register with mitigating strategies was 

audited in period under review.  

Prepare risk 

profile report. 

Risk Profile report for 2012/13 

financial year prepared.  

Risk Profile report for 2012/13 financial 

year prepared  and reviewed by 

Management during the period  under 

review.  

 

8.4. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT  

Performance 

Indicator 

Target  Actual Performance  

April 2012 –  March 2013  

Human 

Resources 

Management 

All staff orientated on NCEDA policies 

and procedures.  

Orientation on approved policies was 

conducted in January 2013 for all staff 

members.  
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Infrastructure 

and Systems 

 

 

Assess and review appropriateness of 

office infrastructure. 

Relocation to new office was done in 

January 2013. 

Assess and review appropriateness of 

IT infrastructure. 

A new IT system was put in place in the 

new offices. 

An IT company was contracted to maintain 

the IT system. 

Recruitment of 

staff. 

 

Fill the post of Manager: Risk 

Management 

Post of Manager: Risk Management filled 

with incumbent starting work on 1 January 

2013. 

Fill the post of Manager: Economic 

Development. 

Post of Manager: Economic Development 

filled with the incumbent starting work on 1 

January 2013. 

Fill the post of Manager: Trade and 

Investment Promotion. 

Post of Trade and Investment Promotion 

filled with the incumbent starting to work 

on 1 January 2013. 

Fill the post of Manager: Human 

Resource Management and 

Administration Support. 

Post of Manager: Human Resource 

management and Administration Support 

filled with the incumbent starting work on 1 

January 2013. 

Fill post of Finance Officer Post of Finance Officer filled with 

incumbent starting work on 1 April 2013.  

Fill post of Supply Chain Officer. Post of Supply Chain Manager filled with 

incumbent starting work on 1 April 2013.  

 

Three temporary workers have been employed for the period February to April 2013 to assist with the 

re-archiving of the NCEDA documents since the Agency moved premises.  

8.5. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UNIT 

Performance 

Indicator 

Target Actual Performance 

April 2012 – March 2013 

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

agricultural 

projects – 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Business plan to be presented to the 

IDC, NEF and Standard Bank for loan 

Business plan to be presented to the IDC, 

NEF and Standard Bank for loan funding.  
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Tripple D 

Farms 

funding. 

Business plan to be presented to the 

Department of Agriculture, Rural 

Development and Land Reform for 

grant funding. 

Business plan to be presented to the 

Department of Agriculture, Rural 

Development and Land Reform for grant 

funding. 

Project implemented according to 

project plan – application for water 

rights submitted. 

Not achieved. 

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

agricultural 

projects – 

Lower 

Majeakgoro 

Pecan Nuts. 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Business plan to be presented to the 

IDC, NEF, DBSA and Standard Bank 

for loan funding. 

Business plan presented to the IDC, NEF, 

DBSA and Standard Bank for loan funding.  

Embark on a trade mission to China, 

Japan and Norway to explore the 

investment opportunities 

Not achieved. 

Project implemented according to 

project plan – commence with pre-

feasibility study. 

Not achieved. 

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

agricultural 

projects – 

Schmidtsdrift 2 

Claimants 

Pecan Nut 

Project 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Presentation of the business plan for 

loan and grant funding to IDC, 

Standard Bank, NEF and DBSA. 

Business plan presented for loan and 

grant funding to IDC, Standard Bank, NEF 

and DBSA. 

Embark on a trade mission to China, 

Japan and Norway to explore the 

investment opportunities 

Not achieved. 

Project implemented according to 

project plan – project funding sourced. 

Not achieved. 

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

agricultural 

projects – 

Afrisam 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Finalise project business plan. Project business plan finalized.  

Prepare presentation to the IDC, NEF, Presentation for funding from IDC, NEF 
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Renewable 

Energy 

Standard Bank for funding. and Standard bank prepared.  

 

 

Prepare presentation to the DEAT 

Technical Economic Cluster for 

funding. 

Presentation for funding to DEDAT 

Technical Economic Cluster made.  

Identification of the strategic partner Skyrai identified as strategic partner.  

Appointment of the service provider 

for the EIA 

Westleigh Environmental Services 

appointed as EIA service provider and 

Phase 1 and Phase 2 of EIA process 

completed.  

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

agricultural 

projects - 

Riemvasmaak 

CRDP project 

Presentation of the business plan for 

loan and grant funding to IDC, 

Standard Bank, NEF and DBSA. 

Business plan for loan and grant funding 

presented to IDC, Standard Bank, NEF 

and DBSA.  

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

tourism 

projects – 

Wildebeestkuil 

Rock Art 

Centre 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Facilitate and 

project 

manages 

tourism 

projects – 

Steam Train 

Project 

Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  

 

Terms of Reference developed for 

feasibility study on selected project 

locations. 

Draft Terms of reference developed.  

Facilitate and Hold 4 Steering Committee Meetings. No steering committee meetings held.  
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project 

manages 

tourism 

projects – 

Riemvasmaak 

 

Complete tender process for 

upgrading and construction of 

facilities.  

Not achieved.  

 

8.6. TRADE AND INVESTMENT PROMOTION UNIT  

 Performance 

Indicator 

Target  Actual Performance  

April 2012 –  March 2013  

Accelerate 

foreign direct 

investment 

and domestic 

investment by 

developing 

investment 

guideline/fram

ework 

Develop an investment framework for 

NCEDA.  

Not completed.  

Profile the 

Northern Cape 

trade 

opportunities 

in the selected 

publications 

that focus on 

investment 

and promotion. 

Northern Cape trade and investment 

opportunities profiled in 6 

publications.  

Northern Cape was profiled in Frontier 

Market Network.  

Northern Cape province was profiled in 

TradeInvestSA electronic newsletter as an 

investment province.  

Northern Cape was profiled at the BRICS 

summit held in Durban from 26-27 march 

2013.  

A 4-page full colour investment was placed 

in Invest SA magazine, the official BRICS 

South Africa magazine.  

Implement 

advocacy 

programme to 

increase 

investment in 

the Northern 

Cape. 

Advocacy programme implemented to 

increase investment in the Northern 

Cape. 

Not completed.  
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Increase value 

of investment 

attracted to the 

Northern 

Cape. 

Workshop presented to advise 

companies on accessing funding from 

the DBSA Job Creation Fund  

Workshop arranged with the DTI for 26 

February 29013.  

Expansion of 

existing 

exporters to 

access “High-

Growth” 

markets 

Attend BRICS Summit Expo and 

support two existing exporters to 

access “High Growth” markets.  

The NCEDA Acting CEO attended the 

meeting with the national minister for 

Trade and Industry on 18 March 2013 as 

part of the BRICS preparations and to 

ensure that all South African delegates 

adopt a single focused message to be 

carried to the BRICS partners.  

The NCEDA Acting CEO and Manager: 

Trade and Investment Promotion attended 

the BRICS Expo and Business Forum from 

25-26 March 2013.  

A representative of Kalahari Kid attended 

the BRICS Summit Expo on the invitation 

of NCEDA.  

Support 

provincial 

enterprises to 

become export 

ready. 

“Export Readiness” diagnostics 

completed on 5 enterprises.  

“Export Readiness” diagnostics completed 

on 5 enterprises.  

15 clients completed course in export 

orientation.  

15 clients completed course in export 

orientation.  

 

8.7 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS UNIT  

 Performance 

Indicator 

Target  Actual Performance  

April 2012 –  March 2013  

Manage the 

NCEDA 

corporate 

identity 

Implement the new NCEDA Corporate 

Identity Manual.  

New e-mail signatures uploaded.  

New letterheads distributed and used.  

New memo and fax templates distributed 

and used.  

New NCEDA folders printed.  

New NCEDA A5 notepads printed.  
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New NCEDA envelopes printed.  

New NCEDA business cards printed.  

New promotional material (e.g. pop-ups) 

produced and procured.  

Procured branded T-shirts, caps, formal 

shirts for staff members and clients.  

Procured staff   nametags.  

Market and 

promote 

NCEDA 

NCEDA website developed and  

reviewed.  

New NCEDA website developed: 

www.nceda.co.za  

NCEDA website content reviewed, gaps 

identified and draft improvements to the 

content prepared and distributed to 

NCEDA management.  

 

NCEDA promoted at BRICS Summit  New NCEDA poster designed and printed.  

NCEDA advertised in official BRICS 

publication.  

 

8.8 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Performance 

Indicator 

Target Actual Performance  

April 2012 –  March 2013  

Financial 

Management 

Monthly review of expenditure reports. Expenditure recorded on Pastel and 

reviewed.  

Appoint service provider to prepare 

annual financial statements for 2012/13 

financial year. 

Enslins Kimberley Inc appointed to prepare 

annual financial statements for 2012/13 

financial year.  

Appoint service provider to assist with 

internal audit function. 

No service provider appointed due to lack 

of funding.  
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8.9 WITSAND NATURE RESERVE 

8.9.1 MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
8.9.1.1 Tourism Marketing and Data Base 
 
The database of the marketing plan is operational and is used to distribute information to Information 
Offices.  Information Offices can obtain general information and brochures from the reserve through the 
links that have been established.   
 
Marketing is also being done through the following media: 
 Newspapers 
 4x4 Magazines 
 Nature Magazines 
 Family Magazines 
 Tourist Guides and Books 
 Editorials through magazines and newspapers 
 Free of charge publications  
 International Tourism Books 
 Roaring Kalahari Route 
 Information letters to various organisations 
 Brochures 
 International and Local Tourism Shows 
 Special Events, such as Weddings, Conferences and Bird  and Photography Clubs  
 Government travel guides 
 Witsand Brochure 

  
8.9.1.2 Significant Events 

 
 The EPWP development and upgrading on Witsand has commenced.  It was a particularly trying 

time for Witsand with building contractors on site whilst still operating a rest camp.   
 
 We have once again got Mastertours (Andersdananders), a large Belgian tour operator to reinstate 

their Witsand visits.  Their visits to Witsand this season have been very successful and feedback 
has been overwhelmingly positive. Their provisional 2012 tours have already been booked with us. 

 
 The Witsand Facebook page which we launched in 2009 is growing in number and ‘fans’ have 

posted their pictures, and interacted with the page.   
 
 Work on our main access road has begun but is taking much longer than expected with several 

delays and postponements experienced. The road to Olifantshoek for most parts of the period under 

70% procurement from BBBEE 

companies. 

Procurement according to Supply chain 

policy, preference given to BBBEE 

compliant companies. 
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review was in a shocking state and have caused several cancellations as people have simply not 
been able to reach us via that road (it is Wuitsand’s main feeder road from Gauteng).  The road 
conditions have led to several cancellations of both tours and conference groups 
 

 Good relations have been established with the DENC staff and there are several joint projects that 
tourism and conservation have tackled together to improve the general running of the nature 
reserve.  
 

 House of Décor in Upington has replaced most of the softs in the rest camp. Curtains, blinds, and 
re-upholstery of the office furniture was not included in this quote and will be covered by the EPWP 
budget.  The old softs were donated to Jogabed Kinderhuis in Upington who were immensely 
grateful for the donation as they do not receive Government funding.  The stock that they cannot 
use in their childrens’ homes will, together with other welfare organizations, be distributed where 
most needed in the poverty-stricken communities. 

 
 We once again procured a CountryTrax Off-Road Riding Academy training weekend and the course 

was enormously successful.  We have already received return visits and word of mouth referrals as 
a direct result of this weekend.  This event is in keeping with the “Northern Cape Extreme” drive, and 
adventure biking is a fast growing activity.  
 

 In June 2012 we were fortunate to host a delegation from the Northern Cape Legislature out on a 
fact finding tour of the province.  A presentation on the successes and challenges Witsand faces 
was presented to the group. 

 
 In August 2012 Witsand was fortunate to host a acclaimed Dakar/Rally driver, Hannes Grobler and 

journalist Danie Botha, who we procured for an indepth off-road tyre testing experiment. The results 
of this event were published in the Drive Out magazine and resulted in very positive exposure to 
Witsand. The value of this exposure amounts to in excess of R60000. 

 
 In August 2012 we agreed to a trade exchange with Huisgenoot/You/Drum magazines to sponsor 

their blockbuster crossword puzzle prize.  The value of this exposure amounts to approximately 
R109 000. 

 
8.9.2 PROMOTIONS/EXHIBITION MATERIAL 

 
 Mr Richard Jessnitz undertook a complete revamp of the information centre.  New displays were 

introduced and new information sheets were included to explain the new displays. This revamp was 
a voluntary undertaking at no cost to NCEDA.  

 
 A series of dune-boarding photographs was taken for use in promotions and advertising. To date, 

we have not had any photographs of this sport that were suitable for use in our advertising material. 
 
 A series of off-road biking photographs were taken for use in promotions and advertising which we 

can now include in our photographic database. 
 
 Following the very successful Central Photographic Society’s AGM held at the reserve, an appeal 

for photographic material to be donated to Witsand for advertising seems to have been received 
positively. It is hoped that a database of good photographs will be collected which can be used in 
various advertising endeavours. 
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Witsand ‘s official destination brochures are distributed as follows: 
 
 South African Tourism Offices  
 South African National Parks 
 Information Offices 
 Museums, Heritage sites and places of interest  
 Hotels, Guesthouses and Restaurants 
 NCTA – Kimberley 
 Petrol Stations and Supermarkets 
 International and Local Tour Operators 
 Tour Guides 
 International and Local Travel Agents  
 Kimberley, Upington, Kuruman, Postmasburg, Griquatown and Kathu Information Offices, as they 

are major role-players in marketing Witsand 
 Airports 
 Domestic and International Shows 
 All the tourism offices and accommodation establishments along our “feeder” towns between 

Witsand and Cape Town. 
 Approximately 400 Witsand brochures, as well as Boegoeberg Eco-Route-, Roaring Kalahari 

Route- and Northern Cape Travel Guide books  were distributed along the route between Witsand 
and the Eastern Cape during January.    

 
The Roaring Kalahari brochures featuring Witsand are distributed as follows: 
 
 South African National Parks 
 South African Embassies 
 Northern Cape Tourism Authority office in Kimberley.  
 International and Local Tour Operators 
 Tour Guides 
 Information Offices  
 Indaba, Getaway, Local and International Shows 
 Travel Agents and Tour Operators  
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8.9.3 GROUPS AND  TOUR OPERATOR VISITS 
 

Date Origin Pax  
11-12.04.2012 Kumba Exploration 15  
17-19.04.2012 Goliath Safaris 5  
05-06.05.2012 Saambou Primary School 61  
15-17.06.2012 Pearman / Nikon Photography  22  
21-22.06.2012 Northern Cape Legislature 18  
19-22.07.2012 Country Trax 27  
26-27.07.2012 Kumba Iron Ore 11  
01.03.08.2012 Leisure Wheels 7  
28-30.08.2013 Andersdananders 9  
31.08.2012 – 02.09.2012 BHP Biliton 40  
10.11.09.2012 Kalahari Tours and Travel 35  
11-13.09.2012 Andersdananders 18  
18-20.09.2013 Andersdananders 16  
21-25.09.2012 WESSA 20  
13-15.10.2012 F Baragan Tours 24  
15-17.10.2012 Nissan 16  
17-19.10.2012 Nissan 12  
20-21.10.2012 Slabbert tours 11  
02-04.11.2012 Aspen group 31  
28-30.11.2012 Kathu High School 16  
30.11.2012-02.02.2012 Coetzee Rekenmeesters 13  
19.12.2012 Olifantshoek Ouetehuis 50  
29-31.12.2012 Nicky Townsend and Television Crew  10  
03-05.02.2013 Kalahari Photographic Society  15  
05-19.02.2013 Field Guide Training 15  
29.02.2013 – 01.03.2013 Kumba Iron Ore 12  
22-23.032013 Assmang Mine 10  
24-26.03.2013 Treverton College 16  
30-31.03.2013 Deysel Group 20  

 

   
8.9.4 ADVERTISEMENTS  AND ADVERTORIALS 
 
8.9.4.1 Magazines 
 
Advertisements were placed in the following print media: 
 Roaring Kalahari Route Brochure  
 Northern Cape Travel Guide 
 Boegoeberg Eco-Route 
 AA Traveller 
 Weg Magazine (free insert in the English equivalent – “Go”) 
 Getaway Magazine (includes free website listing and link)  
 Skyways  

 
8.9.4.2 Internet and Social Media 
 
We have systematically gone through every internet listing on Witsand and corrected the information 
published by these independent web pages. This will be an ongoing task we will undertake from time to 
time in order to ensure that our information remains accurate and up to date. In addition Witsand is 
promoted on the following platforms: 
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 www.eishsa.com 
 www.roaringkalahari.co.za 
 www.boegoebergecoroute.co.za 
 www.google  
 www.safarinow.com  
 www.facebook.com 

 
The Witsand website (www.witsandkalahari.co.za) was refreshed. The new website gives potential 
visitors to the reserve access to a range of new information.  More photographs, general information on 
the region and Witsand have been added to the website. The business we generated from the 
internet/website has increased substantially.  
 
8.9.4.3 Other 
 
Witsand Nature Reserve is registered on Google Business Directory. This is a free directory service 
that generates a map and important information if Witsand is Googled. 
 
Free advertising on Country-Trax website as well as in their printed newsletters. 
 
8.9.4.4 International Enquiries 
 
International enquiries regarding Witsand, includes the following countries: England, Canada, 
Germany, Austria, Switzerland, The Netherlands, Belgium, Japan, Iran, USA, Zambia, Thailand, 
Australia, New Zealand, China, Iceland, Zimbabwe, Namibia, Botswana, Mozambique, Dubai, Isles of 
Man and Kenya. 
 
8.9.5 COMMUNITY SUPPORT 
 
Witsand supports the local community in the following manner:  
 
 
Laundry: Three women from the local community have entered in contract with Witsand 

to do our laundry. The laundry is run on a profit -sharing basis.  
 
Catering: Catering is now also available during the week upon request.  This restaurant 

is run by local people who make use of labour available on Witsand.  The 
restaurant is under new management although still run by San Brokers.  The 
new restaurateur, however, has addressed many of the problems mentioned in 
the previous quarterly report.  

 
Kiosk: The kiosk is being managed by two youths both family members of Witsand 

staff. This is proving to be superb training and experience in entrepreneurship 
for them both. They also assist as temporary staff at the front office when one 
of the permanent staff members are away or on holiday. I am attaching hereto 
a report on the kiosk’s progress.  

 
 Temporary Staff:  Due to much leave and overtime accumulated over a period of years, 

temporary staff from the local community have had to be employed so as to 
relieve the situation, enabling permanent staff members to take leave due.  
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General: Where possible, we make use of local suppliers, thereby boosting the local 

business/economy.  Some of the Witsand staff have started making authentic 
Witsand curios and freshly-baked bread for sale at the kiosk, which adds to the 
general feeling of ownership and empowerment of the employees.  

 .  
 
8.10 OCCUPANCY RATES FOR WITSAND NATURE RESERVE  
 
The Witsand average occupancy rate for the period under review were as follows:  
 
 
Type % in 2012 % in 2011  % in 2010  % in 2009  
Chalet 45 44 47  53  
Bugalow 37 34 32  28  
Camping 17 35 33  36  
 
 
8.11 PRIORITY MATTERS 
 
The following matters will need priority attention going into the next financial year:  
 
 State of access roads leading to Witsand Nature Reserve.  
 Finalising the structures and systems related to the organizational structuring at Witsand.  
 Improving the financial management at Witsand by way of moving away from a manual bookkeeping 

system to the Pastel accounting system.  
 Procurement of a replacement vehicle as current fleet has high and expensive maintenance needs.  

 
8.10 MITTAH SEPEREPERE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE  

8.10.1 BACKGROUND 

A decision was taken in 2012 by the DEDAT HOD that NCEDA must be given the responsibility for 

contributing funding towards the facility launch programme and specified operations at the MSICC.  

DEDAT, subsequent to the decision of the HOD, on 8 February 2012, transferred an amount of R5 000 

000 to NCEDA for the following purpose as spelled out in the adjusted appropriated budget for DEDAT 

in the 2011/12 financial year.  

 Contribute funding to the launch of the MSICC.  

 Contribute funding towards the start-up of the MSICC.  

 

8.10.2 UTILISATION OF FUNDS  

8.10.2.1 Appointment Of Service Provider  

Managing and operating a facility such as the MSICC requires special skills and suitable experience. It 

transpired after receiving the funds from DEDAT that no suitable people in the Northern Cape were 

available for employment by NCEDA to manage and operate the MSICC. The Agency executive 
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authority subsequently took a decision to advertise a bid for recruiting a professional company to 

manage and operate the MSICC. One service provider only responded to the call for bids. 

Umfana Business Enterprise CC and Silver Solutuions 1069 CC trading as International Convention 

Solutions was appointed on concluding the bid process which was managed by NCEDA. The service 

provider was contracted for a period of three months commencing on May 2012. They were paid a 

monthly fee of R165 000 and had to perform the following services as per contractual agreement: 

 Draft procurement and supply chain management plan. 

 Appoint sub-contractors. 

 Draft operations related policies and procedures. 

 Draft digital technology development plan. 

 Draft marketing and sales plan. 

 Implement an accounting and financial management system. 

 Draft quality management plan and ensure ISO qualification for facility.  

 

The work as specified in the contractual agreement was not completed at the termination date of the 

contract. A decision was then taken by the NCEDA executive to extend the contract for another three 

months termination at the end of October 2012. 

International Convention Solutions was paid a total amount of R990 000 for services rendered in terms 

of the contractual agreement. 

8.10.2.2 Launch Programme 

The application of the funding transferred to NCEDA by DEDAT was directed by a special purpose 

committee under direction of the Office of the Premier and DEDAT. This committee directed that 

NCEDA fund the following items towards the launch programme of the MSICC: 

SPENDING CLASSIFICATION 
1. Entertainment and performing acts 
2. Accommodation for performing acts and Northern Cape ambassadors 
3. Northern Cape Ambassadors speaker fees and catering for them 
4. Transport and flights for performing acts and Northern cape Ambassadors 
5. Job creation / employment of casuals 
6. Presenting of fashion show 
7. Voucher purchases for prize-giving purposes 
8. Catering services for the launch event 
9. Gazebo and marquee tent hire and related expenses 
10. Sound and equipment hire 
11. Videography services 
12. Printing of programmes 
13. Mobile toilet, table and chair rentals 
14. Cleaning services 
15. Security services 
16. Rigging services 
17. Gifts 
18. Flooring for marquee tent 
19. Marketing and promotion 
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A total amount of R2 796 486-51 was spent on the MSICC launch programme. 

48.10.2.3 EVENT SUPPORT 

NCEDA during the period under review financially supported the presenting of two events at the 

MSICC, namely the Northern Cape Job Summit and the Female Farmer's Award. 

A total amount of R278 856-00 was spent on event support at the MSICC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32 | P a g e  



PART C: GOVERNANCE 

9.  INTRODUCTION 

Corporate governance refers to the system by which Public Entities are directed, controlled and held to 

account. The governance structure specifies the distribution of rights and responsibilities among 

different participants in the corporation such as the board of directors, managers, shareholders, 

creditors, auditors, regulators, and other stakeholders and specifies the rules and procedures for 

making decisions in corporate affairs. Governance provides the structure through which corporations 

set and pursue their objectives, while reflecting the context of the social, regulatory and operational 

environment. Governance is a mechanism for monitoring the actions, policies and decisions of Public 

Entities as well as the alignment of interests among the stakeholders. In this regard the PFMA (Act 1 of 

1999), Companies Act (Act 71 of 2008) and the King III report are singled out as and how it relates to 

impact on corporate governance in NCEDA. 

10. PARLIAMENTARY OVERSIGHT 

NCEDA presented its Annual Report to the Standing Committee of Public Accounts (SCOPA) and the 

Portfolio Committee for Finance, Economic Development and Tourism during February 2013. 

11. SUBMISSION OF QUARTERLY REPORTS 

NCEDA submitted its Quarterly reports to the office of the Head of the Department for Economic 

Development and Tourism as follows: 

 Quarter 1: July 2012 

 Quarter 2: October 2012 

 Quarter 3: January 2013 

 Quarter 4: May 2013 

12. THE BOARD 

12.1 INTRODUCTION 

The NCEDA Board has the following mandate expressed in Section 5 of the  NCEDA Act (Act 4 of 

2008): 

 To manage and control the affairs of the Agency.  

 To be the accounting authority for the Agency as contemplated in Section 49(2)(a) of the PFMA 

(Act 1 of 1999). 

 To exercise powers and perform the functions conferred or imposed upon the Agency by this Act 

or any other law. 

In addition, the NCEDA Board must lead and guide the Agency, in conjunction with DEDAT , to actively 

promote and market the Northern Cape as an investor-friendly destination to increase and retain 

investment in the Province while at the same time it endeavours to increase trade in commodities 

produced in the province.  
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The Board at all times must exercise and perform its powers and functions with due regard to Section 

104, Section 125 and section 230 of the Constitution of South Africa (Act 108 of 1996), the PFMA (Act 

1 of 1999) and provisions of national and provincial legislation and all national and provincial policies, 

regulations and directives referring to tourism, trade, industry, sector development and investment. 

Section 6(1) of the NCEDA Act (Act 4 of 2008) compels NCEDA to have a minimum of five Board 

members and a maximum of eight. 

The 2012/13 financial year end was closed with NCEDA not complying with its Act as only three Board 

members reamined. One Board member resigned during the financial year. Steps to regularise the 

situation have commenced but were not completed by end of March 2013. 

12.2 COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

Name Designation Date 
Appointed 

Date Resigned Number of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. T. Dikeni Chairperson 1 February 
2011 

- 3 

Ms. R. Majiedt Deputy Chairperson 1 Febraury 
2011 

- 3 

Ms. M. Bloem Non-Executive Member 1 February 
2011 

9 May 2012 0 

Mr. O. Fielding Non-Executive Member 1 June 2012 - 3 
 

12.3 REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS 

Name Remuneration Other 
Allowance 

Travelling and 
Accommodation 

Total 

Mr. T. Dikeni  R 13 955-00 R 5 625-00 R 305 868-43 R 325 448-43 
Ms. R. Majiedt R 4 500-00 R 3 000-00 R   25 449-30 R   32 949-30 
Ms. M. Bloem - - - - 
Mr. O. Fielding R 13 309-00 R 3 375-00 R     9 542-80 R   26 226-80 
 

12.4 BOARD MEETINGS HELD 

The NCEDA Board had sittings on the following dates: 

 31 July 2013. 

 23 October 2012. 

 26 January 2013. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

The NCEDA Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management systems and controls. In this 

regard the oversight and implementation of risk management is discharged by way of the following 

measures: 
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 Risk assessment drawing from information available in financial reports, performance reports 

and personal interviews with risk owners. 

 Implementing a risk management plan. 

 Maintaining a risk register. 

 Risk reporting. 

NCEDA did not have a Risk Management Committee in place during the period under review due to 

budget constraints. 

14. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES. 

Internal audit is the responsibility of tge NC EDA Board. NCEDA did not have an Internal Audit or Audit 

Committee in place during the period under review due to budget constraints. 

15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

NCEDA strives to comply with all relevant legislation and policies applicable to it as Schedule 3C public 

entity. However, during the period under review the Auditor -General reported on a number of non-

compliance issues which resulted in an adverse Audit finding. This included non-compliance with the 

PFMA (Act 1 of 1999), Treasury Regulations, Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act 5 of 

2000), Construction Industry Development Board Act (Act 38 of 2000); and the NCEDA Act (Act 4 of 

2008). 

16. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

A draft Fraud and Corruption Policy was developed and adopted by the NCEDA Board during the 

period under review. 

17. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Employees are prohibited from engaging in any business activities that are actually or potentially 

adverse or detrimental to the best interest, mission and objectives of NCEDA. However, the Auditor-

General reported that not all contracts and quotations awarded were free from bidders who are 

employed by the state or connected to a person employed by the state or Agency. Furthermore, a draft 

policy on managing conflict of interest was developed during the period under review. 

18. CODE OF CONDUCT 

The code of conduct acts as guideline to all NCEDA employees as to what is expected of them. All 

employees signed the Code of conduct. 
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

19. INTRODUCTION 

NCEDA has a set approved policies directing Human Resources Management. However, the challenge 

remains compliance with policies such as performance management. 

Furthermore, developing the skills of staff at NCEDA is a critical need but is constrained by a lack of 

budget. 

20. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  

20.1 COMPENSATION BY SUB PROGRAMME 

20.1.1 NCEDA HEAD OFFICE 

Sub 
Programme 

Total 
Expenditure 
per Sub 
Programme 

Compensation 
Expenditure 

Number of 
Employees 

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee 

Executive R 94 327-32 R 94 327-32 1 R 94 327-32 
Finance R 445 658-08 R 445 658-08 2 R 222 829-04 
Human 
Resources and 
Administrative 
Support 

R 268 986-14 R 268 986-14 2 R 134 493-07 

Economic 
Development 

R 925 711-12 R 925 711-12 3 R 308 570-37 

Trade and 
Investment 
promotion 

R 103 770-16 R 103 770-16 1 R 103 770-16 

Marketing and 
Communication 

0 0 0 0 

TOTAL R 1 838 452-
82 

R 1 838 452-82 9 R 863 989-96 

 

20.1.2 WITSAND 

Sub 
Programme 

Total 
Expenditure 
per Sub 
Programme 

Compensation 
Expenditure 

Number of 
Employees 

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee 

Management R 492 508-28 R 492 508-28 3 R 164 169-42 
Terrain R 257 968-49 R 257 968-49 4 R 64 492-12 
Housekeeping R 140 929-72 R 140 929-72 3 R 46 976-57 
TOTAL R 891 406.49 R 891 406.49 10 R 275 638.11 
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20.2 COMPENSATION BY SALARY BAND  

20.2.1  NCEDA HEAD OFFICE 

Level Compensation 
Expenditure 

% of Total 
Compensation 
Expenditure  

Number of 
Employees  

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee  

Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Managemement 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

R 1 499 123-66  7  R 214  160-52  

Junior 
Management 

R    156 593-74  1  R 156  593-74  

Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Semi Skilled R       58 594-20  1  R     58  594-20  
Unskilled 0 0  0  0  
TOTAL R 1 714 311-60  9  R   429  348-46  
 

20.2.2 WITSAND 

Level Compensation 
Expenditure 

% of Total 
Compensation 
Expenditure  

Number of 
Employees  

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee  

Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Managemement 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

0 0  0  0  

Junior 
Management 

R 259 449-40  1  R 259  449-40  

Skilled R 233 058-88  3  R 116  529-44  
Semi Skilled R 398 898-21  6  R   56  985-46  
Unskilled 0 0  0  0  
TOTAL R 891 406-49  10  R 432  964-30  
 

20.3 PERFORMANCE REWARDS  

No performance bonus was awarded to any employee during the period under review.  
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20.4 COST OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

20.4.1 NCEDA HEAD OFFICE 

Sub 
Programme 

Expenditure 
on 
Compensation 

Expenditure 
on Skills 
Development  

Skills 
development 
Expenditure 
as % of 
Expenditure 
on 
Compensation  

Number of 
Employees 
Trained  

Average 
Cost of Skills 
development 
per 
Employee  

Executive R 94 327-32 0  0  0  0  
Finance R 445 658-08 R 11  398-86  2.51%  1  R 11  398-86  
Human 
Resources and 
Administrative 
Support 

R 268 986-14 R 23  357-46  8.68%  2  R  11  678-73  

Economic 
Development 

R 925 711-12 R 20  508-60  2.22%  2  R  10  254-23  

Trade and 
Investment 
promotion 

R 103 770-16 0  0  0  0  

Marketing and 
Communication 

0 0  0  0  0  

TOTAL R 1 838 452-82 R 55  264-92  13.41%  5  R 33  331-82  
 

20.4.2 WITSAND 

Sub 
Programme 

Expenditure 
on 
Compensation 

Expenditure 
on Skills 
Development  

Skills 
development 
Expenditure 
as % of 
Expenditure 
on 
Compensation  

Number of 
Employees 
Trained  

Average 
Cost of Skills 
development 
per 
Employee  

Executive 0 0  0  0  0  
Finance 0 0  0  0  0  
Human 
Resources and 
Administrative 
Support 

0 0  0  0  0  

Terrain 
Workers 

0 0  0  0  0  

General 
Workers 

0 0  0  0  0  

Marketing and 
Communication 
(Tourism) 

0 0  0  0  0  

TOTAL 0 0  0  0  0  
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20.5 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES  

20.5.1  HEAD OFFICE 

Sub Programme Number of 
Approved Posts 

Number of 
Employed Staff  

Number of 
Vacancies  

%of Vacancies  

Executive 3 1  2  66.6  
Finance 4 2  2  50  
Human 
Resources and 
Administrative 
Support 

3 2  1  33.3  

Economic 
Development 

4 3  1  25  

Trade and 
Investment 
promotion 

4 1  3  75  

Marketing and 
Communication 

1 0  1  100  

TOTAL 19 9  10  52.6  
 

20.5.2 WITSAND 

Sub Programme Number of Posts 
per Staff 
Establishment 

Number of 
Employed Staff  

Number of 
Vacancies  

%  of Vacancies  

Management 5 3  2  40  
Terrain 4 4  0  0  
Housekeeping 5 3  2  40  
TOTAL 14 10 4  28.6  
 

20.6 EMPLOYMENT BY OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY  

20.6.1 NCEDA HEAD OFFICE 

Sub 
Programme 

Number of 
Employees in 
2011/12 

Approved 
Posts in 
2012/2013  

Number of 
Employees in 
2012/13  

Number of 
vacancies in 
2012/13  

% of 
Vacancies  

Executive 0 3 1  2  66.6  
Finance 2 4 2  2  50  
Human 
Resources and 
Administrative 
Support 

1 3 2  1  33.3  

Economic 
Development 

2 4 3  1  25  
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Trade and 
Investment 
promotion 

0 4 1  3  75  

Marketing and 
Communication 

0 1 0  1  100  

TOTAL 5 19 9  10  52.6  
 

20.6.2 WITSAND 

Sub 
Programme 

Number of 
Employees in 
2011/12 

Approved 
Posts in 
2012/2013  

Number of 
Employees in 
2012/13  

Number of 
vacancies in 
2012/13  

% of 
Vacancies  

Management 3 5 3  2  40  
Terrain 4 4 4  0  40  
Housekeeping 3 5 3  2  40  
TOTAL 10 14 10  4  28.6  
 

20.7 EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 

There were no employment changes in the staff employed at NCEDA headquarters.  

 A staff member of Witsand passed away during the period under review and the post was not filled 

again due to financial constraints.  

20.8 LABOUR RELATIONS: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY ACTI ON  

No misconduct and disciplinary action was taken against a staff member at NCEDA Head Office. 

However, a staff member at Witsand was disciplined for being absent without leave and was 

suspended one month without pay.  

20.9 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS  AT FINANCIAL YEAR END  

20.9.1 HEAD OFFICE 

20.9.1.1 Female 

Levels African Coloured  Indian  White  
Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Managemement 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

2 0  0  0  

Junior 
Management 

0 1  0  0  

Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Semi Skilled 0 1  0  0  
Unskilled 0 0  0  0  
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TOTAL 2 2  0  0  
 

20.9.1.2 Male 

Levels African Coloured  Indian  White  
Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

3 2  0  0  

Junior 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Semi Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Unskilled 0 0  0  0  
TOTAL 3 2  0  0  
 

20.9.2 WITSAND 

20.9.2.1 Female 

Levels African Coloured  Indian  White  
Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

0 0  0  0  

Junior 
Management 

0 0  0  1  

Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Semi Skilled 0 0  0  0  
Unskilled 0 2  0  0  
TOTAL 0 2  0  1  
 

20.9.2.2 Male 

Levels African Coloured  Indian  White  
Executive 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Senior 
Management 

0 0  0  0  

Middle 
management 

0 0  0  0  

Junior 
Management 

0 0  0  0  
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Skilled 0 0 0  0  
Semi Skilled 3 3 0  0  
Unskilled 0 0 0  0  
TOTAL 3 3 0  0  
 

No disabled staff is employed at NCEDA.  NCEDA is however an equal employment opportunity 

company and this is specifically mentioned in recruitment advertisements.  Disabled staff is always 

welcome to apply for any position NCEDA advertises.  

 

20.10 EMPLOYED STAFF 

NCEDA closed the financial year with  18 staff members employed. Nine  are employed at the NCEDA 

headquaters in Kimberley and 9 are employed at Witsand Nature Reserve.  

Four Managers were employed at NCEDA Head Office within the year under review:  

 Human Resource Manager 

 Economic Development Manager 

 Trade and Investment Promotion Manager  

 Risk Manager 

One (1) terrain worker was employed at Witsand.  
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PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

21. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY  

The CEO of a public entity is responsible for preparing its annual financial statements and for the 

assessment of the accuracy of the information. In addition, it is also the responsibility of the CEO to 

establish and implement a system of internal controls designed to provide a reasonable assurance as 

to the integrity and reliability of the information provided in the Annual Financial Statements. 

Material corrections have been made to the NCEDA annual financial statements during the audit by the 

Auditor General. In my opinion as Acting Chief Executive Officer the financial statements presented 

here signifies a fair reflection of the operations of NCEDA for the period under review.  

We engaged an external audit firm to prepare the NCEDA annual financial statement for 2012/13. It 

should be noted that they were hampered in this regard due to NCEDA being unable to present all 

sufficient and appropriate information for purposes of compiling the Agency’s annual financial statement 

for the period under review. 
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_________________________ 

Mr. J.L. van Schalkwyk 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

31 July 2013 

 





Report of the 
Auditor General
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities

Public Entity established in terms of the Northern Cape Economic
Development, Trade and Investment Promotions Act. The entity is a
non - profit entity and is focused on service delivery within the
Northern Cape. The entity is listed in terms of the PFMA as a
Schedule 3C - Public Entity.

Board Members T Dikeni (Chairperson)

BMS Bloem [Resigned, 09 May 2012]

R Majiedt (Deputy Chairperson)

OH Fielding

Registered office Templar Building

Second Floor

Kimberley

8301

Business address Templar Building

Second Floor

Kimberley

8301

Executive Authority
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism
(MEC: J Block)

Bankers First National Bank

External Auditors Auditor General of South Africa

Chief Executive Officer J van Schalkwyk (Acting)

Chief Financial Officer T Mangojane

Reporting Framework
General Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), as issued by the
Accounting Standards Board

Relevant Legislation
Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment
Promotions Agency Act No. 4 of 2008

Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999

Skills Development Levies Act No. 9 of 1999

Employment Equity Act No. 9 of 1999

Unemployment Insurance Act No. 30 of 1966

Basic Conditions of Employment Act No. 75 of 1997
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Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions Agency
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Members' Responsibilities and Approval

The members is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records and
is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this report.  It
is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at
the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended.  The external auditors
are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial
records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledges that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment.  To enable the members to meet these
responsibilities, the accounting authority sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost
effective manner.  The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.  These controls are monitored
throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.  The focus of risk management in the entity
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity.  W hile operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements.  However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2014 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
or operations.  The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

Although the accounting authority are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the
entity’s external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity’s  financial statements.  The
financial statements have been examined by the entity’s external auditors and their report is presented on page xx.

The financial statements set out on pages 4 to 50, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the accounting authority on 31 May 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

T Dikeni (Chairperson)

Kimberley

31 May 2013
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Members Report

The members submit their report for the 12 months ended 31 March 2013.

1. Incorporation

The entity was established on 01 April 2010 in terms of the Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment
Promotions Agency Act No. 4 of 2008. The entity is listed as a Schedule 3C Public Entity, in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act, No.1 of 1999.

2. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The entity is engaged in  non - profit activities and is focused on service delivery within the Northern Cape Province and
operates principally in South Africa.

The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our
opinion require any further comment.

Net (deficit) / surplus of the entity was (R 3 996 418); (2012: R 7 061 681 surplus).

3. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2013, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 3 787 249 and that the entity's
total assets exceed its liabilities by R 3 787 249.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
or operations. The Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to
liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

4. Post balance sheet events

The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

5. Members' interest in contracts

The accounting authority and key management of the entity did not have any interest in contracts entered into during the year
under review.

6. Accounting policies

The following Standards on General Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) have been issued but is not yet effective, the
entity did not early adopt this Standards.

GRAP 20: Related Party Disclosure, issued June 2011;                
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting, issued February 2011;
GRAP 105: Transfer of functions between entities under common control; issued November 2010; 
GRAP 106: Transfer of functions between entities not under common control, issued November 2010; 
GRAP 107 Mergers, issued November 2010.

The standards mentioned above will only be effective when a date is announced by the Minister of Finance.

The Minister of Finance announced that the application of GRAP 21, GRAP 23, GRAP 24, GRAP 26, GRAP 103, GRAP 104
will be effective for reporting periods commencing after 1 April 2012.  The entity adopted and early adopted the following new
effective standards for the reporting period ending 31 March 2013.

GRAP 21: Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets;
GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions;    
GRAP 25 Employee benefits
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Members Report

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial Statements;
GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets;
GRAP 103: Heritage Assets
GRAP 104: Financial Instruments

7. Board Members

The board members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Changes
T Dikeni (Chairperson) South - African
BMS Bloem [Resigned, 09 May 2012] South - African Resigned 09 May 2012
R Majiedt (Deputy Chairperson) South - African
OH Fielding South - African Appointed 16 May 2012

8. Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) position has been vacant for the whole of the financial year under review. The Northern
Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism seconded Mr. R Warie  to the entity as acting CEO from 01
January 2011 to 31 August 2012.

The CFO, T Mangojane, acted as CEO for the period 01 September 2012 to 28 February 2013; and  

J van Schalkwyk have been seconded from the Nothern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism from
01 March 2013 up to the date of issue of this financial statements, to act as CEO of the entity.

Business address
Templar Building
Second Floor
Kimberley
8301

9. External Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial year.
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Statement of Financial Position
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 1 475 382 751 073

Intangible assets 4 7 149 10 401

1 482 531 761 474

Current Assets

Inventories 8 66 011 60 259

Loans to employees 9 - 30 700

Trade and other receivables from Exchange Transactions 10 730 416 716

Trade and other receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions 6 338 201 124 956

Cash and cash equivalents 11 4 429 794 9 383 345

4 834 736 10 015 976

Total Assets 6 317 267 10 777 450

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Retained income 3 787 249 7 783 667

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 13 209 830 -

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 12 112 500 112 500

Finance lease obligation 13 137 241 33 662

Trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions 15 1 298 521 1 202 874

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 14 771 926 1 644 747

2 320 188 2 993 783

Total Liabilities 2 530 018 2 993 783

Total Equity and Liabilities 6 317 267 10 777 450
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Statements of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012

Revenue

Revenue from Non - Exchange Transactions

Government Grants and Subsidies received 17.1 3 732 813 13 516 977

Other income - 182 045

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Rendering of services 17.2 2 683 767 2 904 985

Interest received 20 270 219 113 441

Discount received 288 6 883

Other income - 9 531

6 687 087 16 733 862

Cost of sales 18 (253 055) (200 067)

Gross profit 6 434 032 16 533 795
Expenses (Refer to page 8) (10 423 535) (9 466 112)

Operating (deficit) / surplus (3 989 503) 7 067 683

Finance costs 23 (6 915) (6 002)

Net (deficit) / surplus for the year (3 996 418) 7 061 681
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012

Operating expenses

Advertising and marketing (285 650) (448 102)

Corporate branding (370 000) -

Auditors remuneration 25 (255 864) (208 462)

Bank charges (54 734) (41 688)

Board members Honoraruim 30 (37 380) (31 690)

Cleaning (77 971) (109 347)

Employee wellness (2 958) -

Commissioning of studies (327 718) (793 751)

Computer expenses (32 242) (3 096)

Confrences and Seminars (44 704) (22 941)

Export orientation expenses (63 935) -

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (234 475) (191 861)

Electricity and water (36 857) (53 118)

Employee costs     19 (3 675 919) (2 334 321)

Entertainment and functions 21    (47 646) (1 845 626)

Website development expenses (70 500) -

Reallocation cost (99 803) -

Movement in impairment provision (30 700) -

Fines and penalties (30 576) (3 857)

Gifts (400) (56 715)

Insurance (115 668) (121 417)

Laundery services (63 554) (64 585)

Interview expenses (32 877) -

Benchmarking expenses (52 712) -

Motor vehicle expenses (93 246) (86 326)

Postage (3 603) (21 882)

Printing and stationery (115 484) (90 164)

Professional and consulting fees (1 951 658) (215 275)

Promotions material - (105 885)

Rental paid (679 852) (1 044 577)

Repairs and maintenance (68 542) (125 499)

Security (1 305) (218 992)

Donations, sponserships and assistance (20 000) (218 683)

Staff welfare (9 387) (3 100)

Subscriptions (35 735) (5 320)

Sundry expenditure (1 800) (8 311)

Technical assistance - (17 958)

Telephone and fax (161 789) (59 393)

Training (55 265) (114 521)

Travel - local (1 177 512) (368 500)

Travel - overseas - (430 021)

Uniforms and other clothing (3 514) (1 128)

(10 423 535) (9 466 112)

Total net (deficit) / surplus for the year (3 996 418) 7 061 681
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in Rand
Share capital Retained

income
Total equity

Balance at 01 April 2011 - (52 589) (52 589)
Changes in equity
Total Net surplus restated - 7 061 681 7 061 681
Transfer in of functions - Witsand Nature Reserve (Refer to Note
37)

- 94 911 94 911

Prior period errors (Refer to Note 31) - 679 664 679 664

Total changes - 7 836 256 7 836 256

Balance at 01 April 2012 Restated - 7 783 667 7 783 667
Changes in equity
Total Net Deficit for the year - (3 996 418) (3 996 418)

Total changes - (3 996 418) (3 996 418)

Balance at 31 March 2013 - 3 787 249 3 787 249

Note(s)
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Statement of Cash Flows
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 5 824 386 16 372 635

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (10 368 540) (8 195 714)

Cash used in operations 26 (4 544 154) 8 176 921

Interest income 270 219 113 441

Fines and penalties (30 576) (3 857)

Finance costs (6 915) (6 002)

Net cash from operating activities (4 311 426) 8 280 503

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (953 308) (51 305)

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (2 226) (9 798)

Net cash from investing activities (955 534) (61 103)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in loans to employees - (30 700)

Finance lease obligations 313 409 (46 049)

Net cash from financing activities 313 409 (76 749)

Total cash movement for the year (4 953 551) 8 142 651

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9 383 345 1 240 694

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 11 4 429 794 9 383 345
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Accounting Policies

1.1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for changes in the accounting policy, set out in
accounting policy 2.                                                                                               

                    
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.

The following Standard of GRAP have been issued and are effective:

GRAP 1 Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2 Cash flow statements
GRAP 3 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
GRAP 4 The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
GRAP 5 Borrowing Cost
GRAP 6 Consolidated and separate financial statements 
GRAP 7 Investments in associates
GRAP 8 Interest in joint ventures
GRAP 9 Revenue from exchange transactions
GRAP 10 Financial reporting in a Hyperinflationary Economies
GRAP 11 Construction Contracts
GRAP 12 Inventories
GRAP 13 Leases
GRAP 14 Events after reporting date
GRAP 16 Investment property
GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and assets
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange transactions
GRAP 24 Presentation of budget information in the financial statements                
GRAP 25 Employee benefits
GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash-generating assets
GRAP 27 Agriculture
GRAP 31 Intangible Assets
GRAP 103 Heritage assets 
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments
GRAP 100 Non – current assets held for sale and Discontinued operations
IPSAS 20 Related parties
IFRS 3 Business Combinations
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts
IFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of Mineral Resources
IAS 12 Taxes
SIC 20 Income taxes – Recovery of revaluated Non – depreciated assets 
SIC 25 Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax status of an entity or its shareholders
IFRIC 2 Members shares in Co – operative Entities and similar instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining whether a arrangement contains a leases
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction
IFRIC 15 Agreement for the construction of Real Estate
IFRIC 16 Hedges in net investments in a foreign operation
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1.1.1 Crtitical judgements, estimations and assumptions

In the application of the entity's accounting policies, which are described below, the management are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management have made in the
process of applying the entity’s Accounting Policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
Annual Financial Statements: 

1.1.2 Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy 1.14.1 on Revenue from Exchange Transactions and Accounting Policy 1.14.2 on Revenue from Non-
exchange Transactions describes the conditions under which revenue will be recorded by the management of the entity.

In making their judgement, the management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP
9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions; Revenue, as far as Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions is concerned
management considered the detail criteria of GRAP 23 for the recognition of revenue. In particular, whether the entity, when
goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and when services is
rendered, whether the service has been rendered. Also of importance is the estimation process involved in initially measuring
revenue at the fair value thereof. The management of the entity is satisfied that recognition of the revenue in the current year is
appropriate.

1.1.3 Useful live's of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

As described in Accounting Policies 1.2.3 and 1.3.2 the entity depreciates / amortises its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end
of their useful lives, which is determined when the assets are available for use. The useful lives and residual values of the
assets are based on industry knowledge.

1.1.4 Impairment of property, plant and equipment; Intangible assets; Inventories and Financial assets

Accounting Policy 1.2.3 on PPE - Impairment of assets and Accounting Policy 1.3.2 on Intangible assets - Subsequent
Measurement, Amortisation and Impairment and Accounting Policy 1.6 on Inventory - Subsequent measurement describes the
conditions under which non-financial assets are tested for potential impairment losses by the management of the entity.
Significant estimates and judgements are made relating to PPE impairment testing, Intangible assets impairment testing and
write down of Inventories to the lowest of Cost and Net Realisable Values (NRV).

The measurement of loans receivable is derived after consideration of the allowance for doubtful debts. Management makes
certain assumptions regarding the categorisation of debtors or loans into groups with similar risk profiles so that the effect of
any impairment on a group of receivables or loans would not differ materially from the impairment that would have been
determined had each debtor been assessed for impairment on an individual basis. The determination of this allowance is
predisposed to the utilisation of estimates, assumptions and management judgements. In determining this allowance the
estimates are made about the probability of recovery of the debtors / loans based on their past payment history and risk profile.

1.1.5 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities as
set out in the notes. Provisions are discounted where the effect of discounting is material using actuarial valuations.

1.1.6 Presentation currency

The Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, rounded off to the nearest Rand, which is the entity's
functional currency.

1.1.7 Going concern assumption

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

1.1.8 Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of
GRAP.
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Crtitical judgements, estimations and assumptions (continued)

1.1.9 Standards, Amendments to Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the entity:

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosure - issued June 2011;
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued February 2011; 
GRAP 105 Transfer of Funtions between Entities under Common Control - issued November 2010; 
GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entities not under Common Control - issued November 2010 and 
GRAP 107 Mergers - issued November 2010.

All other standards as listed above will only be effective when a date is announced by the Minister of Finance.

Nature of impending changes in accounting policy:
GRAP 18, Segment Reporting; GRAP 105, Transfer of functions between entities under common control; GRAP 106, Transfer
of functions between entities not under common control; GRAP 107, Mergers. The effectiveness of this Standards will not have
an effect on the financial statements / accounting policies of the entity, as the entity do not have any related transactions or
activities that falls within the scope of these Standards.

GRAP 20, Related Party Disclosure: Accounting Policy will be develop in terms of this Standards and GRAP 3, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors applied.

Impact on the entity's financial statements once implimented:   
GRAP 18, Segment Reporting; GRAP 105, Transfer of functions between entities under common control; GRAP 106, Transfer
of functions between entities not under common control; GRAP 107, Mergers. The effectiveness of this Standards will not have
an impact financial statements of the entity, as the entity do not have any related transactions or activities that falls within the
scope of these Standards. 

There will be no material impact on the recognition, measurement and disclosure in the financial statements with the adoption
of GRAP 20, Related Party Disclosure. The adoption will however result in a change in accounting policy and the relevant
disclosure will be made in terms of GRAP 3, Accounting Policy, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

1.1.10 Comparative information

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. W here accounting errors have been
identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are
restated accordingly. W here there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

1.2.1 Initial Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one year. Items of
property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the entity. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset and
restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Where an asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed
to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the entity expects to use them during
more than one period.  Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item
of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

                  
1.2.2 Subsequent measurement - Cost model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new
component.  Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic
benefits associated with the asset.

1.2.3 Depreciation and Impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives:

Item Useful life's
Office furniture 6 years
Motor vehicles and related equipment 8 years
Office equipment 6 - 25 years
IT equipment 2 - 5 years
Photography equipment 2 - 4 years
Other Office equipment 3 - 8 years

Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use, unless stated otherwise.

The residual value, the useful life of an asset and the depreciation method is reviewed annually and any changes are
recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is
an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. W here the carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which
is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that the impairment is identified.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised.  A reversal of the impairment is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

1.2.4 Finance lease

Assets capitalised under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as PPE controlled
by the entity or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease if there is no reasonable certainty that the entity will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

1.2.5 Derecognition

Items of Property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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1.3 Intangible assets

1.3.1 Initial recognition

Identifiable non–monetary assets without physical substance are classified and recognised as intangible assets. The entity
recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.

                                         
Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised. Research expenditure
is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are fulfill:
- it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;
- management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
- there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
- it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
- the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over
its useful life, not exceeding five years. Development assets are tested for impairment annually, in accordance with IPSAS 21/
IAS 36.          

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of an intangible asset is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the intangible asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the entity, or where an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value
as at the date of acquisition. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Intangible assets acquired
separately or internally generated are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary
and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was
not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the assets given up.

1.3.2 Subsequent measurement, amortisation and impairment   

After initial recognition, an intangible asset are carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

In terms of GRAP 102, intangible assets are distinguished between internally generated intangible assets and other intangible
assets. It is further distinguished between indefinite or finite useful lives. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over
the intangible assets' useful lives, which are estimated to be between 3 to 5 years, the residual value of assets with finite useful
lives is zero, unless an active market exists.                            

Intangible assets are annually tested for impairment, including intangible assets not yet available for use. W here items of
intangible assets have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an
expense in the period that the impairment is identified except where the impairment reverses a previous revaluation. The
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount.

The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year. Any
adjustments arising from the annual review are applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives:

Item Useful life
Computer software 3 years

1.3.3 Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is
determined as the difference between the net disposals proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
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1.4 Financial instruments

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This is achieved through the application of trade date
accounting.

Upon initial recognition the entity classifies financial instruments or their component parts as a financial liabilities, financial
assets or residual interests in conformity with the substance of the contractual arrangement and to the extent that the
instrument satisfies the definitions of a financial liability, a financial asset or a residual interest.

Financial instruments are evaluated, based on their terms, to determine if those instruments contain both liability and residual
interest components (i.e. to assess if the instruments are compound financial instruments). To the extent that an instrument is
in fact a compound instrument, the components are classified separately as financial liabilities and residual interests as the
case may be.

1.4.1 Initial recognition and measurement

When a financial instrument is recognised, the entity measures it initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or
a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

1.4.2 Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are measured after initial recognition using the following categories: 

a) Financial instruments at fair value
- Derivatives.
- Compound instruments that are designated at fair value i.e. an instrument that includes a derivative and a non-derivative host
contract.                                                     
- Instruments held for trading. 
- Non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at
initial recognition. 
- An investment in a residual interest for which fair value can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.

b)     Financial instruments at amortised cost 

Non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those
instruments that the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition or are held for trading. 

c)     Financial instruments at cost

Investments in residual interests, which do not have quoted market prices and for which fair value cannot be determined
reliably. 

The entity assesses which instruments should be subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost, based on the
definitions of financial instruments at fair value, financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost as set
out above. 

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised at trade date, when:

The cash flows from the asset expire, are settled or waived;
a) Significant risks and rewards are transferred to another party; or
b) Despite having retained significant risks and rewards, the entity has transferred control of the asset to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation is extinguished. Exchanges of debt instruments between a borrower and
a lender are treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. W here the terms
of an existing financial liability are modified, it is also treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of
a new liability.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
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Financial instruments (continued)
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired or through the amortisation process. 

Offsetting

The entity does not offset financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position unless a legal right of
set-off exists and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.

Impairments

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.  The entity assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

For financial assets held at amortised cost:

The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the entity determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in the collective assessment of impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset‘s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset‘s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

For financial assets held at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.  Such impairment losses are not reversed. 

Investments at amortised cost

Investments, which include [listed government bonds, unlisted municipal bonds, fixed deposits and short-term deposits
invested in registered commercial banks] are categorised as financial instruments at amortised cost and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. 

Where investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an
expense in the period that the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited
to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held with
registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call
with banks.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, less provision for impairment. All trade and other receivables are
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Financial instruments (continued)
assessed at least annually for possible impairment. Impairments of trade and other receivables are determined in accordance
with the accounting policy for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through the use of an allowance account.

Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.  Amounts receivable within 12 months from
the reporting date are classified as current.  Interest is charged on overdue accounts.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.5 Risk Management of Financial Assets and Liabilities

It is the policy of the entity to disclose information that enables the user of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and
extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed on the reporting date. 

                           
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
- market risk;
- credit risk; 
- liquidity risk.

Risks and exposure are disclosed as follows:

Market Risk
- Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
affect the entity's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
- The maximum exposure to cash flow and fair value risk, price risk and foreign currency risk.
-  Sensitivity analysis for each of the market risks.

Credit Risk
- Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the entity if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment securities.
- Each class of financial instrument is disclosed separately.                    
- Maximum exposure to credit risk not covered by collateral is specified.
- Financial instruments covered by collateral are specified.

Liquidity Risk                                                     -
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The entity's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the entity's reputation.
- A maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities that shows the remaining contractual maturities.
- Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash
flow requirements. Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and, if
required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are met.

1.6 Inventories

Initial Recognition

Inventories comprise current assets held for sale, current assets for consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of
business.   Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus taxes, transport costs
and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition. W here inventory is manufactured,
constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the manufacturing process.

Where inventory is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed
to be equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired. 

Direct costs relating to properties that will be sold as inventory are accumulated for each separately identifiable development.
Costs also include a proportion of overhead costs. 
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Subsequent Measurement
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (net amount that an entity expects to realise from the sale on
inventory in the ordinary course of business).  In general, the basis of determining cost is the weighted average cost of
commodities.  If inventories are to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge they are valued at the lower of cost and
current replacement cost.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.7 Employee benefits

Short - term Employee Benefits                              
Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable in the short term, i.e. within a financial year
or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee benefits include remuneration, compensated
absences and bonuses.

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as services are rendered, except for
non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when the specific event occurs. These short term employee benefits are
measured at their undiscounted costs in the period the employee renders the related service or the specific event occurs.

1.8 Leases

Finance leases
At inception of an arrangement, the entity determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset is
the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified asset. An arrangement conveys
the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the entity the right to control the use of the underlying asset. At
inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the entity separates payments and other consideration required by such
an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the entity
concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised
at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and an
imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Where the entity enters into a finance lease, Property, plant and equipment or Intangible Assets subject to finance lease
agreements are capitalised at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Corresponding liabilities are included in the Statement of
Financial Position as Finance Lease Liabilities. The corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease
and are measured as the sum of the minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect
of interest. In discounting the lease payments, the entity uses the interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and
unguaranteed residual value to the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred. Lease payments are allocated
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method.  Lease finance costs are
expensed when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies
applicable to property, plant, equipment or intangibles. The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are allocated
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs are
expensed when incurred. The accounting policies relating to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life or the lease term.

Operating leases

The entity recognises operating lease rentals as an expense in the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.  The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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1.9 Transfer of functions between entities under common control

Definitions

An acquirer is the entity that obtains control of the acquiree or transferor.  

Carrying amount of an asset or liability is the amount at which an asset or liability is recognised in the statement of financial
position.

                        
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to benefit from its activities.

A function is an integrated set of activities that is capable of being conducted and managed for purposes of achieving an
entity's objectives, either by providing economic benefits or service potential.

A merger is the establishment of a new combined entity in which none of the former entities obtains control over any other and
no acquirer can be identified.

Transfer date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the function and the transferor loses control of that function.

A transfer of functions is the reorganisation and/or the re-allocation of functions between entities by transferring functions
between entities or into another entity.

A transferor is the entity that relinquishes control of a function

Common control - For a transaction or event to occur between entities under common control, the transaction or event needs
to be undertaken between entities withing the same sphere of government or between entitities that are part of the same
economic entity.  Entities that are ultimately controlled by the same entity before and after the transfer of functions are within
the same economic entity.

A function is an integrated set of activities that is capable of being conducted and managed for purposes of achieving an
entity's objectives, either by providing economic benefit or service potential.  A function consists of inputs and processes
applied to those inputs that have the ability to create outputs.  A function can either be a part or a portion of an entity or can
consist of the whole entity.  Although functions may have outputs, outputs are not required to qualify as a function.  The three
elements of a function are defined as follows:

Input:  Any resource that creates, or has the ability to create, outputs when one or more processes are applied to
it.
Process:  Any system, standard, protocol, convention or rule that when applied to an input or inputs, creates or has the ability
to create outputs.
Output:  The result of inputs and processes applied to achieve and improve efficiency.  This may be in the form of achieving
service delivery objectives, or the delivery of goods and/or services.

Identifying the acquirer and transferor

For each transfer of functions between entities under common control an acquirer and transferor are identified.  All relevant
facts and circumstances are considered in identifying the acquirer and transferor.

The terms and conditions of a transfer of functions undertaken between entities under common control are set out in a binding
arrangement.  The binding arrangement governing the terms and conditions of a transfer of functions may identify which entity
to the transaction or event is the transferor(s) and which entity is the acquirer.  W here the binding arrangement does not clearly
identify the acquirer or the transferor, the behaviour or actions of the entities may indicate which entity is the acquirer and which
entity is the transferor.

Determining the acquirer includes a consideration of, amongst other things, which of the entities involved in the transfer of
functions initiated the transaction or event, the relative size of the entities, as well as whether the assets or revenue of one of
the entities involved in the transaction or event significantly exceed those of the other entities.  If no acquirer can be identified,
the transaction or event is accounted for in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Mergers.

Determining the transfer date

The acquirer and the transferor identify the transfer date, which is the date on which the acquirer obtains control and the
transferor loses control of that function.

All relevant facts and circumstances are considered in identifying the transfer date.

Assets acquired (transferred) and liabilities assumed (relinquished).

The recognition of assets and liabilities, is subject to the following conditions:
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The assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are part of what had been agreed in terms of the binding arrangement (if
applicable), rather than the result of separate transactions.

Determining what is part of the transfer of functions transaction.

Where the entity and the transferor have a pre-existing relationship before or when negotiations for a transfer of functions
began, or where a binding arrangement is entered into during the negotiations that are separate from a transfer of functions,
any amounts that are not part of what were transferred in a transfer of functions are identified.  This policy only applies to the
consideration transferred and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transfer of functions as governed by the terms
and conditions of the binding arrangement.

The following factors are considered, which are neither mutually exclusive nor individually conclusive, to determine whether a
transaction is part of a transfer or function or whether the transaction is separate:
- the reason for the transaction; 
- the timing of the transaction.

Effective settlement of a pre-existing relationship between the entity (as acquirer) and transferor in a transfer of functions.

A pre-existing relationship between the entity (as acquirer) and the transferor may be contractual or non-contractual.  If a
transfer of functions in effect settles a pre-existing relationship, the entity (as acquirer) recognises a gain or loss, measured as
follows:  
- for a pre-existing non-contractual relationship, the fair value. 
- for a pre-existing contractual relationship, the lesser of the following: the amount by which the binding arrangement is
favourable or unfavourable from the perspective of the entity (as acquirer) when compared with terms for current market
transactions for the same or similar items; the amount of any stated settlement provisions in the binding arrangement available
to the counterparty to  whom the contract is unfavourable.

If the latter is less, the difference is included as part of a transfer of functions accounting.  The amount of gain or loss
recognised may depend in part on whether the entity (as acquirer) had previously recognised a related asset or liability, and the
reported gain or loss therefore may differ from the amount calculated by applying the above requirements.

Other criteria for the entity (as acquirer)

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed that qualify for recognition as set out in the binding arrangement meets the
defiitions of assets and liabilities in the Framewordk for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and the
recognition criteria in the applicable Standards of GRAP at the transfer date.

Costs that the entity expects, but which it is not obliged to incur in the future to effect its plan to exit an activity of the transferor
or to terminate the employment of, or relocate the transferor's employees, is not accounted for as part of the liabilities at the
transfer date.  The entity does not recognise those costs as part of a transfer of functions.  Instead, the entity recognises these
costs in its financial statements after the transfer has occured, in accordance with the applicable Standards of GRAP.

Accounting by the entity as acquirer

Initial recognition and measurement

As of the transfer date, the entity recognises the purchase consideration paid to the transferor and all the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a transfer of functions.  The assets acquired and liabilities are measured at their carrying amounts.

If, prior to the transfer of function, the transferor was not applying the accrual basis of accounting, the transferor changes its
basis of accounting to the accrual basis of accounting prior to the transfer. 

The consideration paid by the entity can be in the form of cash, cash equivalents or other assets.  If the consideration paid is in
the form of other assets, the entity de-recognises such assets on the transfer date at their carrying amounts.

The difference between the carrying amounts of the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and the consideration paid to the
transferor, is recognised in accumulated surplus or deficit.

Measurement period

If the initial accounting for a transfer of functions is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the transfer occurs,
the entity reports in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.  During
the measurement period, the entity retrospective adjust the provisional amounts recognised at the transfer date to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the transfer date and, if known, would have affected the
measurement of the amounts recognised as of that date.  The measurement period ends as soon as the entity receives the
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Transfer of functions between entities under common control (continued)
information it was seeking about facts and circumstances that existed as of the transfer date or learns that more information is
not obtainable.  However, the measurement period does not exceed two years from the transfer date.

The entity considers all relevant factors in determining whether information obtained after the transfer date should result in an
adjustment to the provisional amounts recognised or whether that infomration results from events that occurred after the
transfer date.

The entity recognises an increase (decrease) in the provisional amount recognised for an asset (liability) by means of
decreasing (increasing) the excess of the purchase consideration paid over the carrying amount of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed previously recognised in accumulated surplus or deficit.  However, new information obtained during the
measurement period may sometimes result in an adjustment to the provisional amount of more than one asset or liability.

During the measurement period, the entity recognises adjustments to the provisional amounts as if the accounting for the
transfer of functions had been completed at the transfer date.  Thus, the entity revises comparative information for prior periods
presented in financial statements as needed, including making any change in depreciation, amortisation or other income
effects recognised in completing the initial accounting.

After the measurement period ends, the entity revises the accounting for a transfer of functions only to correct an error in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Acquisition - related costs

Acquisition -related costs are costs that the entit incurs to affect the transfer of functions.  These costs include advisory, legal,
accounting and other professional or consulting fees, general administrative costs, and costs of regisering and issuing debt and
equity securities.  The entity accounts for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred
and the services are received, with the exception of the costs incurred to issue debt or equity securities, which are recognised
in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The entity subsequently measure any assets acquired and any liabilities assumed in a transfer of functions in accordance with
the applicable Standards of GRAP.

At the transfer date, the entity classifies or designates the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as necessary to apply other
Standards of GRAP subsequently.  The entity makes those classifications or designations on the basis of the terms of the
binding arrangement, economic conditions, its operating or accounting policies and other relevant conditions that exist at the
transfer date.  An exception is that the entity classifies the following contracts on the basis of the ocntractual terms and other
factors at the inception of the contract (or, if the terms of the contract have been modified in a manner that would change is
classification, at the date of that modification, which might be the transfer date):

- classification of a lease contract as either an operating lease or a finance lease in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on
Leases; and                         
- classification of a contract as an insurnce contract in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard on
Insurance Contracts

Accounting by the entity as transferor

Derecognition of assets transferred and liabilities relinquished.

As of the transfer date, the entity derecognises from its financial statements, all the assets transferred and liabilities
relinquished in a transfer of functions at their carrying amounts.

Until the transfer date, the entity continues to measure these assets and liabilities in accordance with applicable Standards of
GRAP.

The consideration received from the acquirer can be in the form of cash, cash equivalents or other assets.  If the consideration
received is in the form of other assets, the entity measures such assets at their fair value on the transfer date in accordance
with the applicable Standard of GRAP.  The difference between the carrying amounts of the assets transferred, the liabilities
relinquished and the consideration received from the acquirer is recognised in accumulated surplus or deficit.
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1.10 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of
financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes. 

Commitments are disclosed for:
- Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been awarded at the
reporting date.
- Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has yet to be
awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date. 
- Items are classified as commitments where the entity commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources. 
- Items are classified as commitments where the entity commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources. 
- Other commitments for contracts are be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost contracts should relate to
something other than the business of the entity.  

1.11 Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent liabilities represent a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
an occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent
liability can also arise as a result of a present obligation that arises from past events but which is not recognised as a liability
either because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent assets represent possible
assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not
recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements.

1.12 Comparative Information

Current year comparatives

Budgeted amounts have, in accordance with GRAP 1, been included in the financial statements and forms part of the
audited Annual Financial Statements.

Prior year comparatives

When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual Financial Statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are reclassified.  The nature and reasons for the reclassification are disclosed.

1.13 Events after Reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and

- those that is indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

The entity will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot
be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.14 Revenue Recognition

Revenue, excluding value-added taxation where applicable, is derived from a variety of sources which include, grants from
other tiers of government and revenue from trading activities, interest and other services provided.  Revenue is recognised
when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and these benefits can be
measured reliably, except when specifically stated otherwise.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the entity’s activities. Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and discounts.
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Revenue Recognition (continued)

The entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the entities activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The entity bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the entity directly in return for services rendered /
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable. 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the entity received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the  related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to
repay the amount. 

1.14.1 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Finance Income
Interest earned on investments is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the time proportionate basis
that takes into account the effective yield on the investment.

Interest earned on the following investments is not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance:
- Interest earned on trust funds is allocated directly to the fund.
- Interest earned on unutilised conditional grants is allocated directly to the creditor: unutilised conditional grants, if the grant
conditions indicate that interest is payable to the funder.

Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been met:

- The entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.
- The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold.
- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.
- The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at balance sheet date. Stage of
completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Services Rendered
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.14.2 Revenue from Non - Exchange Transactions

                    Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
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Revenue Recognition (continued)
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. W hen a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy
the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
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1.15 Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP
3 requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of
the change in policy. In such cases the municipality shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for
the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable. 

                                                
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in
estimates are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error.  In such cases the municipality shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest
period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.  Refer to Note 31 to the Annual Financial Statements for details of
corrections of errors recorded during the period under review.

1.16 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

 Contract costs comprise:
costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract; and
such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract.

1.17 Irregular Expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999), the National
Treasury Regulations on Supply Chain Management, National Treasury Practise Note 8 of 2007/08, Preferential
Procurement Regulations and Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act.  Irregular expenditure excludes
unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.19 Related Parties

Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and/or operating decisions. Key management personnel is defined as the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
all other managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer or as designated by the Chief Executive Officer.

79 | P a g e  
 

 



Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions Agency
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

2. Changes in accounting policy

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards on General Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), as issued by the ASB on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new effective
standards.

GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial Statement
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits
GRAP 26 Impairment of cash-generating assets
GRAP 103 Heritage assets 
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

The effectiveness of GRAP 26 and 103 does not have any effect on the annual financial statements, as the entity does not
have any transactions that falls within the scope of these standards. 

GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating assets

During the current year, the entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the impairment of non-cash-generating assets,
by adopting the effective standard of GRAP 21, Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets. 

Previously the entity developed it's accounting policy based on IAS36, Impairment of assets. IAS 36 prescribes that impairment
should be recognised when the assets recoverrable amount is less than the assets carrying amount. The recoverable amount
is the highest of the fair value less cost to sell or its value in use.

The entities assets have been subject to impairment testing each year based on the same methods as prescribed by the
previous standard and GRAP 21 therefore do not bring any changes to the recognition and measurement of impairments
previously recognised. There will therefore not be any retrospective adjustments in the annual financial statements, due to the
effectiveness of GRAP 21.

GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget information in the Financial Statements

During the current year, the entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the disclosure of budget information in the
annual financial statements by adopting the effective standard of GRAP 24, Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial
Statements. 

The accounting policy as previously disclosed by the entity on budget information was developed in line with the principals of
GRAP 24.

                          
With GRAP 24 not being effective in previous reporting periods the entity made use of a disclosure note, prescribed by the
National Treasury to reconcile the net surplus of the entity to the net surplus per final approved budget.

The adoption of the effective standard GRAP 24 results in additional disclosure to be made in the financial statements relating
to budget information, the information that will be disclosed are as follows in terms of the standard: Statement of comparison of
actual and budget amounts; Explanations of material difference between the final budget and actual;     

The change in the accounting policy will be prospectively applied.

GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

During the current year, the entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the treatment of Financial Instruments in the
annual financial statements by adopting the effective standard of GRAP 104, Financial Instruments. 

Previously the entity made use of IAS 32, Financial Instrument - Presentation; IAS 39, Financial Instrument - Recognition and
Measurement and IFRS 7, Financial Instrument - Disclosure.

                           
Under the IAS, financial assets have been recognised, measured and disclosed as  Loans and Receivables and Available for
Sale financial assets.

Under the IAS, financial liabilities have been recognised, measured and disclosed as, Financial liabilites  at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

2. Changes in accounting policy (continued)
GRAP 104 streamlined the various financial instrument categories as required by the IAS, under the GRAP standard there are
only three financial instrument categories: Financial Instruments - at fair value; Financial Instruments - at cost; and Financial
Instruments - at amortised cost.

The effect of the adoption is that the financial asset and liabilities of the entity have to be evaluated and subsequently
measured in terms of the financial instrument classification criteria. 

The effect on financial assets: Financial assets consists of short term loans, trade and other receivables from exchange
transactions, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions. These financial
assets have previously been classified as Loans and Receivables and Available for sale. Under GRAP 104, these assets will
be classified as measured at amortised cost.  

The effect for financial liabilities: Financial liabilities of the entity consists of short term loans, unspent portions of conditional
grants, trade and payables from exchange and non-exchange transactions and finance lease liabilities. These financial
liabilities have previously been classified as - at amortised cost. Under GRAP 104, these liabilities will be classified as
measured at amortised cost. 

The change in accounting policy will result in reclassification of assets and liabilities, however it will not result in the
retrospective adjustment in the values of these instruments as previously reported, due to the nature of the assets and
liabilities.

The change in accounting policy will be retrospectively applied.

GRAP 25: Employee benefits

During the current year, the entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the treatment of Employee benefits in the
annual financial statements by adopting the effective standard of GRAP 25, Employee benefits. 

Previously the entity made use of IAS 19, Employee benefits - to recognise, measure and present Employee benefits in the
annual financial statements.

The adoption of the effective standard of GRAP does not cause any retrospective adjustments in die annual financial
statements in terms of recognition, measurement and presentation of employee benefits.

                          
The entity only have short - term employee benefits, as defined by GRAP 25, Employee benefits.

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

During the current year, the entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the treatment of non-exchange revenue in the
financial statements, by adopting the effective standard of GRAP 23, Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions .

The change in accounting policy did not have any effect on the financial statements, as the entity based its accounting policy in
prior years on the requirements of GRAP 23, Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions . The effect of this is that all non-
exchange revenue received in the current and prior financial years have been recognised and measured in terms of GRAP 23,
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions .
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

3. Property, plant and equipment

2013 2012

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Office furniture 616 121 (111 640) 504 481 329 106 (54 963) 274 143
Motor vehicles and related
equipment

268 319 (89 440) 178 879 268 319 (44 720) 223 599

Office equipment 691 224 (215 324) 475 900 314 820 (121 595) 193 225
IT equipment 334 187 (50 009) 284 178 66 299 (17 302) 48 997
Photographic Equipment 1 435 (1 001) 434 1 435 (639) 796
Other property, plant and
equipment

32 754 (1 244) 31 510 10 754 (441) 10 313

Total 1 944 040 (468 658) 1 475 382 990 733 (239 660) 751 073

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013

Opening
Balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Office furniture 274 143 287 015 (56 677) 504 481
Motor vehicles and related equipment 223 599 - (44 720) 178 879
Office equipment 193 225 376 404 (93 729) 475 900
IT equipment 48 997 267 889 (32 708) 284 178
Photographic equipment 796 - (362) 434
Other office equipment 10 313 22 000 (803) 31 510

751 073 953 308 (228 999) 1 475 382

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012

Opening
Balance

Additions Assets
Transfer in 01

April 2011

Derecognised Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Office furniture 18 401 - 304 007 - (48 265) - 274 143
Motor vehicles - - 268 319 - (44 720) - 223 599
Office equipment 95 344 1 878 174 926 (2) (78 921) - 193 225
IT equipment 23 790 35 975 2 419 (6) (12 594) (587) 48 997

796Photographic Equipment 1 159 - - - (363) -
Other office equipment - 13 452 - - (3 139) - 10 313

138 694 51 305 749 671 (8) (188 002) (587) 751 073

Pledged as security

Finance lease assets with a carrying value of R358 488 (R52 013: 2011/12) have been pledged as security for the finance
lease obligation as dislcosed in Note 13.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Office equipment 358 488 52 013

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use - 251

The fully depreciation assets are disclosed at R1 values. The assets was transferred from the Northern Cape Toursim Authority
on 01 April 2011. The entity is in process to fair value the items received in the transfer of functions between entities under
common control. All the assets are still in use.

Property, plant and equipment received on 01 April 2011 through a transfer of function between entities under common control
at no nominal consideration have been fair valued, refer to Note 31 on "Prior Period Errors".

4. Intangible assets

2013 2012

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying value

Computer software 17 823 (10 674) 7 149 15 598 (5 197) 10 401

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013

Opening
Balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software 10 401 2 226 (5 478) 7 149

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2012

Opening
Balance

Additions Derecognised Amortisation Total

Computer software 3 867 9 798 (2) (3 262) 10 401

Individually material intangible assets

The entity do not have individually material intangible assets.

Pledged as security

No intangible assets have been pledged as security.

Amortisation charges on intangible assets have been included in "Depareciation and amortisation" in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Intangible assets with a carrying value of (R2; 2011/12) have been derecognised. The assets have no service potential and
was subsequantely replaced. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

5. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2013

Cost Fair Value Amortised
Cost

Total

Trade and other receivables from
Exchange Transactions - - 730 730
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4 429 794 4 429 794
Trade and other Receivables from
Non-Exchange Transactions - - 338 201 338 201

- - 4 768 725 4 768 725

2012

Cost Fair Value Amortised
Cost

Total

Loans to directors, managers and
employees - - 30 700 30 700
Trade and other receivables from
Exchange Transactions - - 416 716 416 716
Trade and other receivables from
Non-Exchange Transactions - - 124 956 124 956
Cash and cash equivalents - - 9 383 345 9 383 345

- - 9 955 717 9 955 717

Change in Accounting Policy
The financial instrument classification of financial assets have been retrospectively adjusted due to the adoption of GRAP 104,
Financial Instruments. 

The effect of the implimentation of the new accounting policy is as follows:
Loans from directors, managers and employees; Under IAS 39, these balances have been classified as Loans and
Receivables. The classification have been retrospectively adjusted and these financial assets are now classified under GRAP
104, at Amortised Cost. 

Trade and other receivables from Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions, were classifiied under IAS 39 as Loans and
Receivables. The classification have been retrospectively adjusted and these financial assets are now classified under GRAP
104, at Amortised Cost.

Cash and cash equivalents, were classified under IAS 39 as Available-for-Sale. The classification have been retrospectively
adjusted and these financial assets are now classified under GRAP 104, at Amortised Cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

6. Receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions

The receivable from the Northern Cape Tourism Authority is due to the transfer of W itsand Nature Reserve from the Northern
Cape Tourism Authority on 01 April 2011. The receivable represents cash and cash equivalents of W itsand still due to the
entity.

The receivables from employees, board members and other sundrey suppliers are due to overpayments made during the
financial year. The overpayments are currently being investigated by the board.

Receivables: Employees / Board members and other sundry debtors 338 201 -
Receivable: Northern Cape Tourism Authority (W itsand Nature Reserve) - 124 956

Total receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions 338 201 124 956

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of Trade and other Receivables approximate their fair
values.

7. Receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions past due but not impaired

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 to12 months past due 338 201 124 956

8. Inventories

Merchandise at cost 66 011 60 259

Inventory pledged as security

No inventory was pledged as security during the year.

9. Loans to employees

Loans to employees
At beginning of the year 30 700 -
Transfer in from NCTA 01 April 2011 - Loan S de Koker - 30 700
Provision for impairment on loan (30 700) -

- 30 700

The loan to an employee bears no interest and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Loans to employees past due but not impaired

The loan of a Witsand employee was received with a transfer of functions between entities under common control on 01 April
2011, the loan is past due and have been fully impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

3 months past due - 30 700

Loans employees impaired

As of 31 March 2013, a loan to an employee of R30 700  was impaired and provided for.

The loan have been recognised in the enitity with the transfer of Witsand from the Northern Cape Tourism Authority on 01 April
2011.

The amount of the provision was R30 700 at 31 March 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

9. Loans to employees (continued)

The ageing of this loan is as follows:

Over 24 months 30 700 30 700

The carrying amount of loans to employees are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand - 30 700
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

9. Loans to employees (continued)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of loans to employees

Provision for impairment 30 700 -

10. Trade and other receivables from Exchange Transactions

Trade receivables - 415 986
Deposits 730 730

730 416 716

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of Trade and other Receivables approximate their fair
values.

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

Trade and other receivables were not pledged as security during the year. 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

The ageing of amounts due but not impaired is as follows:

Trade Receivables: Ageing

0 - 30 days - 415 986
+ 120 days 730 730

730 416 716

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 730 416 716
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 22 633 14 598
Bank balances 1 115 108 6 827 832
Short-term deposits 3 290 295 2 540 242
Petty cash 1 758 673

4 429 794 9 383 345

Current assets 4 429 794 9 383 345

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement,  Cash and Cash Equivalents include
Cash-on-Hand and Cash in Banks.

Bank Accounts

The entity only make use of registered Banks within South - Africa. 

Details are as follows:

Bank 
First National Bank Cheque Account 6228-122-8885 257 379 6 497 411
First National Bank Petty Cash 6232-828-6978 1 758 673
First National Bank Money Market Investment 6232-308-3733 3 290 295 2 540 242
First National Bank Cheque Account 6232-308-5367 (W itsand) 857 729 330 421
Cash on Hand 22 633 14 598

4 429 794 9 383 345

12. Other financial liabilities

Amortised cost
Short term loan: Northern Cape Tourism Authority (W itsand Nature Reserve)
The loan bears no interest and have no fixed term of repayment.

112 500 112 500

Current liabilities
Amortised cost 112 500 112 500

Fair value of the financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Loan: Northern Cape Tourism Authority (W itsand Nature Reserve) 112 500 112 500

Management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of other financial liabilites approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities at amortised cost are denominate in the following currencies:

Rand 112 500 112 500
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13. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 161 474 34 579
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 225 047 -

386 521 34 579
less: future finance charges (39 450) (917)

Present value of minimum lease payments 347 071 33 662

Non-current liabilities 209 830 -
Current liabilities 137 241 33 662

347 071 33 662

It is company policy to lease certain office and IT equipment under finance leases. 

The lease terms are 2 - 5 years and interest is payable at a rate of 8% - 10%. 

Interest rates are linked to the prime lending rate at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rent. 

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer to note 3.
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14. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

The entity complied with the conditions attached to all grants received to the extent of revenue recognised.

Unspent Conditional Grant Liability 771 926 1 644 747

771 926 1 644 747

National Lottery Board
Opening balance 915 541 1 106 502
Grants received - -
Conditions met / Transfer to revenue (143 615) (190 961)

Closing balance 771 926 915 541

Industrial Development Corporation (IDC)
Opening balance 729 206 63 043
Transfer in from Section 21 Company - -
Grants received - 1 333 223
Conditions met / Transfer to revenue (729 206) (667 060)

Closing balance - 729 206

UNIDO Regional Office
Opening balance - -
Grants received 63 900 -
Conditions met / Transfer to revenue (63 900) -

Closing balance - -

Frances Baard Districk Municipality
Opening balance - -
Grants Received - 100 000
Conditions met / Transfer to revenue - (100 000)

Closing balance - -

Unspent conditional grant liabilites 771 926 1 644 747

Total conditions met / Transfer to revenue 936 721 968 021
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15. Trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions

Trade payables 874 480 938 709
Amounts received in advance 109 564 115 181
Provision for Thirteen Cheque 105 976 68 972
Provision for leave 168 481 79 812
Unknown deposits received 40 020 200

1 298 521 1 202 874

Fair value of trade and other payables

Trade payables 1 298 521 1 202 874

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of Creditors approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 1 298 521 1 202 874

Immaterial  individual creditor balances have been restated  in the prior year.  Refer to Note 31 on "Prior Period Errors" for the
quantum of the restatement as at 31 March 2012.

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from the receipt of the invoice, as determined by the PFMA.  No interest is
charged for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice.  Thereafter interest is charged in accordance with the credit
policies of the various individual creditors that the entity deals with.  The entity has financial risk policies in place to ensure that
all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

      
Accrued leave and thirteen cheque's accrues to the staff of the entity on a monthly basis, subject to certain conditions.  The
accrual is an estimate of the amount due at the reporting date.
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16. Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2013

Cost Fair Value Amortised
cost

Total

Short term loans 112 500 112 500
Unspent conditional grants and receipts - - 771 926 771 926
Trade and other payables (Exchange) - - 1 298 521 1 298 521
Trade and other payables (Non - Exchange) - - - -
Finance lease liabilities - - 347 071 347 071

- - 2 530 018 2 530 018

2012

Cost Fair Value Amortised
Cost

Total

Short term loans - - 112 500 112 500
Unspent conditional grants and receipts - - 1 644 747 1 644 747
Trade and other payables (Exchange) - - 1 202 874 1 202 874
Finance lease liabilities - - 33 662 33 662

- - 2 993 783 2 993 783

Change in Accounting Policy
The financial instrument classification of financial liabilities have been retrospectively adjusted due to the adoption of GRAP
104, Financial Instruments.

The effect of the implimentation of the new accounting policy is as follows:
Short term loan; Unspent conditional grants and receipts; Trade and other payables from Exchange and Non-Exchange
Transactions; and Finance leases have been classified At Amortised Cost, under IAS 39. With the new adoption of GRAP 104
the classification of the mentioned financial liabilities have not changed and the liabilities are classified At Amortised Cost.

17. Revenue
17.1 Revenue from Non - Exchange Transactions

Grants: Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 2 741 491 12 558 956
Grants: Frances Baard Districk Municipality - 100 000
Grants: Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) 729 206 667 060
Grants: National Lottery Fund 143 615 190 961
Dontation received: EPWP (Witsand) 54 600 -
Grant: UNIDO 63 900 -

3 732 812 13 516 977
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17. Revenue (continued)

17.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Accomodation income 2 209 636 1 782 024
Adventure and expedition income 72 070 206 356
Sale of groceries, curios and other sundries 311 526 315 380
Sundrey income 90 535 23 211
Event income - 578 014

2 683 767 2 904 985

18. Cost of sales

Sale of goods
Opening stock 60 259 -
Stock transferred from Witsand Nature Reserve 01 April 2011 - 35 961
Purchases 258 807 224 365
Closing stock (66 011) (60 259)

253 055 200 067

19. Employee Cost

Employee cost can be divided into the following criteria:

Remuneration paid to Employees of the NCEDA
Employee Related Cost - Basic Salary 1 873 679 835 683
Employee Related Cost - Contributions to UIF 8 772 5 433
Allowances and other payments 147 876 108 900
Thirteen Cheque 99 930 59 132
Movement in leave and thirteen cheque provision 103 787 13 625
Provident fund contributions 95 651 -

2 329 695 1 022 773

Remuneration paid to Employees of Witsand Reserve

Employee Related Cost - Basic Salary 757 576 814 450
Employee Related Cost - Allowances 139 059 118 041
Employee Related Cost - Thirteen Cheque 76 138 95 267
Skills Development Levy - 4 338
Employee related cost - Contributions to UIF 8 413 8 547
Movement in leave and thirteen cheque provision 21 887 11 363
Wages 134 348 102 052
Provident fund contributions 208 803 157 490

1 346 224 1 311 548

Total salaries and wages 3 675 919 2 334 321

- -
- -
- -

Refer to Note 30 for the seperate disclosure of remuneration paid to Board members and Key Management personel.
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20. Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Cash and cash equivalents 270 219 113 441

21. Entertainment and Function expenditure

Catering 47 646 564 960
Accomodation - 208 485
Performers and speakers - 758 880
Transport and flight - 229 301
Videoagraphy and other services - 76 000
Vouchers / gifts for event - 8 000

47 646 1 845 626

22. Impairment of assets

Material impairment losses (recognised) reversed
Property, plant and equipment
Computer equipment was damage during the financial year and could no longer
be used for service deleivery. The damaged computer equipment was impaired
to R0 and replaced with new computer hardware.

- (587)

23. Finance costs

Finance leases 6 915 6 002

24. Taxation

NCEDA is excempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 (1)(Zc) of the Income Tax Act. The excemption have been approved
by the South African Revenue Service (SARS).

25. Auditors' remuneration

Audit fees 147 635 161 025
Accounting and consulting services 108 229 47 437

255 864 208 462
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26. Cash used in operations

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (3 996 418) 7 061 681
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 234 475 191 274
Finance costs 6 915 6 002
Impairment loss - 587
Rental paid - 182 040
Fines and penalties 30 576 3 857
Interest income (270 219) (113 441)
Other non-cash items 30 702 30 700
Movement in leave and bonus and other provisions 125 673 13 637
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (5 752) (24 298)
Trade and other receivables from Exchange Transactions 415 986 -
Trade and receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions (213 245) (510 243)
Trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions (30 026) 1 009 555
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (872 821) 325 570

(4 544 154) 8 176 921

27. Commitments for Expenditure

Authorised expenditure

Approved and Contracted
Accounting and professional services - 87 495
Other Consulting services 397 719 437 398

Approved but not yet contracted - -
Other consulting services - 495 000

Total Commitments 397 719 1 019 893

This committed expenditure relates to accounting and other consulting services  and will be financed by available bank
facilities, retained profits and existing cash resources.

Commitments under finance leases are disclosed in Note 13. 

28. Contingencies

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

NCEDA do not have any contingent assets or liabilites on 31 March 2013, that will require disclosure in terms of GRAP 19,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 
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29. Related parties

`

Relationships
Board Members with significant influence T Dikeni (Chairperson)

BMS Bloem
R Majiedt (Deputy Chairperson)
OH Fielding

Key Management R Warie (Acting CEO up to 31 August 2012)
J van Schalkwyk (Acting CEO since 01 March 2013)
T Mangojane (CFO)
E Groener
TL Luse
KE Nefali
DF Kruger

Controlling Department with significant influence Department of Economic Development and Toursim
Entities under control of controlling department Northern Cape Toursim Authority

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivables and  (Trade Payables) regarding
related parties
T Dikeni (480) (2 500)
Northern Cape Toursim Authority (Amount receivable in terms of the Transfer
on functions between entities under common control 01 April 2011)

- 124 956

Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism - (281 120)
BMS Bloem (1 650) -
OH Fielding 20 909 -
KE Nefale (606) -
R Warie and R Majiedt 25 000 -
E Groener 17 907 -
TL Luse 11 938 -
KE Nefali 17 997 -
T Mangojane 29 845 -

Loan accounts - Owing (to) related parties
Northern Cape Tourism Authority (Loan payable in terms of the Transfer of
functions between entitied under common control 01 April 2011)

112 500 112 500

Related party transactions

Recovery of Personal Telephone Calls (received from) related parties
R Warie - (298)
T Mangojane - (1 681)
M Tlhoaele - -

Remuneration paid to Key Management
T Mangojane 467 910 269 104
E Groener 137 748 -
TL Luse 134 683 -
DF Kruger 125 213 -
KE Nefale 137 748 -

Travel claims paid to related parties
R Warie 141 795 66 379
T Dikeni 16 366 77 483
T Mangojane 909 -
E Groener 11 220 -
TL Luse 4 445 -
DF Kruger 909 -
KE Nefale 3 509 -
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29. Related parties (continued)
R Majiedt 18 096 -
OH Fielding 4 053 -

Honoraruim paid to related parties
T Dikeni 25 180 17 940
BMS Bloem 2 200 4 500
R Majiedt 10 000 9 250

- -

Transfer of functions between entities under common control 
Northern Cape Toursim Authority (Assets Received on 01 April 2011) - 385 857
Northen Cape Tourism Authority (Liabilities received on 01 April 2011) - (290 949)

Grants (received) or paid to related parties
Department of Economic Development and Tourism (2 741 491) (12 558 956)

Rental benefit (received) paid on behalf of related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism - (182 045)
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30. Honoraruim and Remuneration of Board Members and Key Management

Board Members

2013 T Dikeni BMS Bloem R Majiedt Total
Honoraruim 25 180 2 200 10 000 37 380

2012 T Dikeni BMS Bloem R Majiedt Total
Honoraruim 17 940 4 500 9 250 31 690

Key Management

2013 Remuneration
E Groener

Remuneration
T Masilo

Remuneration
TL Luse

Remuneration
KE Nefali

Remuneration
DF Kruger

Basic Salary 137 748 383 124 134 683 137 748 125 213
Thirteen cheque - 25 768 - - -
Other Allowances - 59 018 - - -

137 748 467 910 134 683 137 748 125 213

2012 Remuneration
T Masilo

Total

Basic Salary 247 808 -
Other Allowances              
Thirteen Cheque 21 296 -

269 104 -

Key Management Remuneration

The CEO position of the entity was vacant for the whole of the financial year. 

The Executive Authority seconded Mr. R W arie to act as CEO up to 31 August 2012, T Mangojane (CFO), acted from 01
September 2012 to 28 February 2013 and J van Schalkwyk acted since 01 March 2013 up to the date of this financial
statements, as CEO of the entity. 

The acting CEO's seconded by the Executive Authority is being remunerated under the Northern Cape Department of
Economic Development and Tourism.
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31. Prior period errors

Corrections were made and appropriated to the Accumulated Surplus Account during the financial year ended 31 March.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

The total effect of the prior period error on the Net surplus 31 March 2012
as previously disclosed
Net surplus disclosed 31 March 2012 (previously) 453 390
Correction of prior period errors - figures restated at 31 March 2012 6 608 291

Net surplus 31 March 2012 - Restated 7 061 681

Total effect of prior period error on the Accumulated surplus account 31
March 2012 as previously disclosed
Accumulated surplus 31 March 2012 (previously) 495 712
Correction of prior period errors - figures restated at 31 March 2012 7 287 955

Accumulated surplus 31 March 2012 - Restated 7 783 667

The correction of prior period errors can be reconcilled as follows:

Net surplus
Increase / (Decrease) in operating expenditure 24 480
Increase in Grant income (6 740 941)
Increase in depreciation charges 108 170

6 608 291

The increase in operating expenditure is due to trade and other payables that
were not completely recorded in the financial statements as previously issued,
2011/12. The increase in depreciation is due to property, plant and equipment
that were received on 01 April 2011 at no nominal consideration, these items
have been fair valued, which resulted in an increase in depreciation charges
previously recognised. The increase in grant income is due to grant income
received in 2011/12, the revenue was deferred and not recognised in full in the
year the revenue was received. All of these errors have been retrospectively
adjusted in the annual financial statements, as required by GRAP 3, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors  

Statement of Financial Position
Property, plant and equipment 31 March 2012 (previously) 179 577
Prior period Error 01 April 2011 571 496

751 073

Property, plant and equipment were received on 01 April 2011 at no nominal
consideration. The increase in property plant and equipment is due to the fair
valuation of the items received, as per the requirements of GRAP 17, Property,
plant and equipment. All of these errors have been retrospectively adjusted in
the annual financial statements, as required by GRAP 3, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 31 March 2012
(previously)

1 178 391

Prior period Error 31 March 2012 24 483

99 | P a g e  
 

 



Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions Agency
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2013 2012

31. Prior period errors (continued)

1 202 874

Trade and other payables were discovered in 2012/13 that were not provided
for the in the trade and other payables from exchange transactions, as
disclosed in the 2011/12 annual financial statements. The trade and other
payables were provided for resulting in an increase of operating expenditure
and an increase in the trade and other payables balance of 2011/12. All of the
errors have been retrospectively adjusted in the annual financial statements, as
required by GRAP 3, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors. 

Unspent conditional grant and receipts / Trade and other payables from Non -
Exchange transactions 31 March 2012 (previously)

8 385 690

Prior period Error 31 March 2012 (6 740 943)

1 644 747

Transfer payments received from DEDAT have been deferred in 2011/12 and
disclosed as part of unspent conditional grants and trade and other payables
from non-exchange transactions. The revenue received have subsequently
been recognised in full and the error retrospectively adjusted in the financial
statements. Revenue increased and unspent conditional grants and trade and
other payables from non-exchange transactions decreased. Errors have been
retrospectively adjusted in the annual financial statements, as required by
GRAP 3, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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32. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and budget and actual expenditure is monitored on a monthly basis.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

At 31 March 2013 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Borrowings 112 500 - - -
Trade and other payables (Exchange) 1 298 521 - - -
Finance lease obligations 137 421 209 830 - -
Unspent conditional grant and receipts 771 926 - - -

At 31 March 2012 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Borrowings 112 500 - - -
Trade and other payables 1 202 874 - - -
Finance lease obligations 33 662 - - -
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 1 644 747 - - -

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise of a releative small customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. 

No credit limits or agreements were exceeded / defaulted during the reporting period, and management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2013 2012
Trade and other receivables (Exchange and Non - Exchange) 338 931 541 672
Cash and cash equivalents 4 429 794 9 383 345
Loan to Employees - 30 700
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32. Risk management (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The entity is not expose to any foreign exchange risks.

Price risk

The entity is not exposed to any price risks.

33. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2013, the entity had an accumulated surplus of R 3 787 249 and that the entity's
total assets exceed its liabilities by R 3 787 249.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
or operations. The Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to
liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

34. Post balance sheet events

There were no adjusting or non - adjusting events identified after 31 March 2013.

35. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:

Opening Balance 104 467 99 592
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year 111 196 4 875
Condoned by the Board - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement 215 663 104 467

Fruitless and wasteful - Incidents:

Interest and penalty charges paid to the Receiver of Revenue for the late submission of monthly employee tax returns R30 527
(2011/12: R4 875); (2010/11: R8 472).

R80 620 Expenditure was incurred during 2012/13 for the recruitment of a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) for the entity, the
entity could not recruit a suitable CEO and also did not have sufficient funds to appoint a CEO. 

Honoraruim paid to board members in the prior year amounting to (2011: R91 120)

Late payment of supplier accounts R49.

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure is still under investigation by the board.
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36. Irregular Expenditure

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 4 611 326 1 689 312
Irregular expenditure - current year 2 757 868 2 922 014
Condone by the board - -

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement 7 369 194 4 611 326

The irregular expenditure is due to supply chain management processes not being followed:

Three quotations were not obtained for procurement between R10 000 to R500 000 as required by Practice Note 8 of 2007/08.
Quotations were not evaluated in accordance with the preference point system as prescribed by the PPPF Act.
No tender process was entered into for procurement exceeding R500 000.

The irregular expenditure is still under investigation by the board.

37. Transfer of Functions for entities under common control

On 01 April 2011 the Northern Cape Tourism Authority (NCTA) transferred all
the functions of Witsand Nature Reserve to NCEDA. With the transfer of
functions various assets and liabilites were received. 

Details of the transfer are as follows:

Property, plant and Equipement received 70 006
Trade and other receivables received 279 893
Inventory received 35 961
Short term liability: NCTA (received) (112 500)
Trade and other payables (received) (155 054)
Finance lease liability (received) (23 396)

Amount transferred to Accumulated surplus (94 910)
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1. Northern Cape Economic Development Agency Funders

Receipts or unspent portion of grants Industrial
Development
Corporation

(IDC)

National
Lottery Board

UNIDO
Regional

Office

Unspent portions of grants received in prior years 01 April 2012 729 206 915 541 -
Grants received - current year - - 63 900

Total income or unspent funds available 729 206 915 541 63 900

Payments for the year
Confrences - - (4 050)
Subsistance and travel (307 099) (1 818) (6 598)
Benchmarking expenses - - (52 712)
Catering - - (540)
Consulting and professional fees (655 909) (141 797) -
Accommodation (35 990) - -

Total Expenditure (998 998) (143 615) (63 900)

Available portion of funds / (portion finance by own funds) (269 792) 771 926 -

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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